
CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
MONDAY, AUGUST 9, 2021 7:00P.M.  

Forthosewishing tolisten livetothemeeting, pleasegotoci.shorewood.mn.us/current_meeting for
themeeting link. Contact thecityat952.960.7900during regular business hourswithquestions.  

AGENDA

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL MEETING

A. PledgeofAllegiance

B. RollCall
MayorLabadie___  

Siakel___  
Johnson___  

Callies___  
Gorham___  

C. Review andAdoptAgenda
Attachments

2. CONSENT AGENDA TheConsentAgendaisaseriesofactionswhicharebeingconsideredforadoptionthisevening
underasinglemotion.  Theseitemsareconsideredroutineandnon-controversial.  However, acouncilmembermayrequestthatan
itemberemovedfromtheConsentAgendaforseparateconsiderationordiscussion.  Ifthereareanybriefconcernsorquestionsby
council, thosecanbeanswerednow.  

Motion toapprove itemsontheConsent Agenda & AdoptResolutions Therein:  

A. CityCouncil Regular Meeting Minutes ofJuly26, 2021 Minutes

B. Approval oftheVerifiedClaimsList ClaimsList

C. LMCIT Insurance Waiver CityAdministrator Memo

D. Calling forSpecial Meeting forRetreat CityAdministrator Memo
Resolution 21-083

E. Approve MaryLakeAgreement, CityProject19-09 Engineer Memo
Resolution 21-084

3.     MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR Thisisanopportunityformembersofthepublictobringanitem, whichisnoton
tonight'sagenda, totheattentionofthemayorandcouncil. Ifyouwanttoaddressthecouncil, pleaseusetheraiseyourhand
feature. Onceyouarerecognized, pleaseidentifyyourselfbyyourfirstandlastnameandyouraddressfortherecord.  Afterthis
introduction, pleaselimityourcommentstothreeminutes.  Allcommentswillberespectful. Noactionwillbetakenbythecouncilon
thismatter, butthemayororcouncilcouldrequestthatstaffplacethismatteronafutureagenda. (NoCouncil Action willbe
taken)  

4. PUBLIC HEARING

5. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS



CITYCOUNCILREGULARMEETINGAGENDA
Page2

A. MikeMeehan, ChiefSLMPD 2022Budget Presentation

B. GreenCorps Presentation KeelySchultz, GreenCorps

6. PARKS

A. ReportbyCommissioner HeinzandCommissioner Hirneron Minutes
07-27-21ParkCommission Meeting

B.  ThreeRiversLRTTrailhead Connection inFreeman Park Planning Director Memo

C.  Authorize Purchase ofCommunity Garden Fenceat ParkandRecDirector Memo
SouthShorePark Resolution 21-087

7. PLANNING

8. ENGINEERING/ PUBLIC WORKS

9. GENERAL/NEW BUSINESS

A. Repeal Section 110ofCityCode - Domestic Partner Registry CityAdministrator Memo
Ordinance 580

10. STAFF AND COUNCIL REPORTS

A. Staff

B. MayorandCityCouncil

11. ADJOURN



2A

CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
MONDAY, JULY 26, 2021 7:00P.M.  

MINUTES

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MayorLabadie called themeeting toorderat7:00P.M.  

PLEDGE OFALLEGIANCE

A. Roll Call

Present.  Mayor Labadie; Councilmembers Johnson, Siakel, Callies, andGorham; City
Attorney Keane; CityAdministrator Lerud; CityClerk/HRDirector Thone; Finance
Director Rigdon; Planning Director Darling; Director ofPublicWorksBrown; and,  
CityEngineer Budde

Absent: None

B. Review Agenda

Johnson moved, Siakel seconded, approving theagenda aspresented.  All infavor.   
Motion passed.   

2. CONSENT AGENDA

MayorLabadie reviewed theitemsontheConsent Agenda.   

Callies moved, Johnson seconded, Approving theMotions Contained ontheConsent
Agenda and Adopting theResolutions Therein.    

A. City Council Work Session Meeting Minutes ofJuly 12, 2021

B. City Council Regular Meeting Minutes ofJuly 12, 2021

C. City Council Special Meeting Minutes ofJuly 15, 2021

D. Approval of theVerified Claims List

E. Appointment ofAdministrative Assistant

F. Approve Final Payment for2021 Pavement Marking, City Project 21-04,   
RESOLUTION NO. 21-078, “AResolution for Acceptance and Final Payment,  
City Project 21-04, the2021 Pavement Marking Plan.”   

stG. Accept Improvements and Partial Release forMinnetonka Country Club 1,  
ndrd2, and3 Additions, City Projects 14-13, 15-06, and 16-04RESOLUTION NO.  



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
JULY 26, 2021
Page 2of26

21-079, “AResolution Accepting Improvements and Partial Release ofLetter
stndrdofCredit for Minnetonka Country Club 1, 2, and3 Additions.”  

All infavor.  Motion passed.   

3. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR

BrentHislop, 6000Strawberry Lane, distributed somegraphics fortheCouncil tosee.  Hestated
thattheirhomeabuts theroadproject thatwillbediscussed laterintheagenda.  Hethanked the
CitystaffandtheCouncil foralltheirhardworkwiththestormwater project because hethinksthis
issorelyneeded intheCity.  Hestated thathehadabriefconversation withCityEngineer Budde
aboutayearagoastheponding projectwasgetting going.  Hestatedthatthefirst itemhewould
liketobetaken intoconsideration istheexisting pond.  Hestated thatthepondwaslikelydug
sometime inthe1980sandnotedthatitisprivate propertybuttheCityhasadrainage andutility
easement overit.  HeaskedthattheCityconsider dredging orcleaning theexistingpond
somehow toassistwithmoving water fromtheirarea.  Hestated thathewouldalsoliketoask
theolddraintilepipesomehow beimproved andnotedthatthiswouldnot justbeofbenefit to
theirproperty, buttothesurrounding area.  Hestated that thelastthinghewould liketoaskfor
worktobedoneonportions oftheregional trailtorestore theditchtoallowthepondtofloweither
tothepondordown thetrail.  Hestated thatthereisanoldculvertatStrawberry andthetrail that
hebelieves isclogged.    

George Greenfield, 24715Yellowstone Trail, askedCouncilmember Johnson whatthestatutory
justification isfor appointing someone rather thanelecting someone totheCouncil vacancy.   
MayorLabadie explained thatquestion wouldbemoreappropriate forCityAttorney Keane.  

Mr. Greenfield explained thatthereasonheaddressed hisquestion toCouncilmember Johnson
wasthathehadaskedhimthatquestion afewmonths agoandnever received ananswer.  He
stated thatheisconcerned thattheCouncil didnotscrutinize thismatterwellenough toknowthe
rationale forhavinganappointment rather thanaspecial election.    

MayorLabadie explained thattheCouncil consistsofresidents oftheCity, butcounts onguidance
fromtheCityAttorney aswellastheLeagueofMinnesota Citiesonthatmatter.  Citiesareallowed
toappoint someone tofillaCouncil vacancy inthissituation iftheremaining termwaslessthan
twoyears, sotheCitywasjustified inseeking applications, conducting interviews, andappointing
someone tofilltheseat.  ShestatedthattheCityreceived around thirteen applications andthe
vacantseatwasfilled following tworoundsofinterviews. Shestated thattheCityfollowed state
statuteandtheguidance oftheLeagueofMinnesota CitiesandtheCityAttorney.    

Mr. Greenfield stated thathewoulddisagree thattherewaslessthantwoyears leftontheterm
vacated byMayorLabadie.   Hestated thatmathematically shehadtoresignhertermbefore she
wassworn inasmayor, sothatmeanstherewasmore thantwoyearsleftonherterm.  Hestated
thathefeels ithadnothing todowiththefactthattherewerelessthantwoyears leftontheterm
andreadaloudaportionoftheStatute.  Hestated thatthefactthattheCouncil didnotknowthe
realreasonandwereunable toarticulate it,  indicates their indifference tothedemocratic process
because theychosetotakethewilloffourpeopleoverthewilloftheregistered voters intheCity.   
Hestated thattheyweretechnically correct, butderelict intheirinvestigation ofthejustification.    

Councilmember Siakelstated thattheCouncil didabsolutely nothing wrong andfollowed State
statute andtheguidance ofitslegalcounsel.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
JULY 26, 2021
Page 3of26

Mr. Greenfield argued thatlessthanhalfisstillmorethantwoandfeels itisalogical fact that
cannotbedisputed.  MayorLabadie stated thattheycancalculate thenumberofdaysforMr.  
Greenfield ifhewouldlike, butheexplained thathehadexceeded hisallotted threeminutes.  Mr.  
Greenfield stated that thereisnotimelimitonhisFirstAmendment rightsabout redress for
petitions forgrievances.  Hestated thatthethreeminutes thingcomes fromRoberts Rulesof
Orderwhichhavenolegalstanding.  MayorLabadie thanked Mr. Greenfield forexpressing his
opinion.    

4. PUBLIC HEARING

5. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS

6. PARKS

7. PLANNING

A. Report byCommissioner Huskins onJuly 6, 2021 Planning Commission Meeting

Commissioner Huskinsgaveanoverview oftheJuly6, 2021Planning Commission Meeting as
reflected intheminutes.   

B. Variance toaSide Yard Setback
Applicant:  Kimberly Poe
Location:  23320 Park Street

Planning Director Darling explained thatthisisarequest foravariance toallowanaddition to
thehomelocatedat23320ParkStreet.  Theproperties around thishomeareallsinglefamily
home except foranopenspaceproperty ownedbytheCitylocated tothenorthwest.  Theproperty
wascreated in1987andthehomewasconstructed in1924priortomodern zoning regulations.   
Thehome wasconstructed sixfeet fromtheproperty lineandtheapplicant hasproposed toadd
amain floorbathroom andfrontentryway.  Sheexplained thattheaddition wouldbeslightly over
seven feettothesideproperty line.  ThePlanning Commission recommended approval.   

Councilmember Johnson notedthatatthemeeting itwasclarified thattheconcern raisedbya
neighbor wasontheopposite sideofthehouse, sowouldnotcause issues.  

Gorham moved, Johnson seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 21-080, “AResolution a
Variance totheSide Yard Setback forProperty Located at23320 Park Street.” All infavor.   
Motion passed.   

C. Minor Subdivision/ LotLine Adjustment
Applicant:  Todd Cebulla
Location:  19210 Waterford Place and 5520 Vine HillRoad

Planning Director Darling explained thatthisisarequest bytheproperty owner foralotline
adjustment effecting twoproperties thatheowns.  Shestated thatbothexisting andproposed
lots meetthe required minimum lotsize.  ThePlanning Commission recommended approval
subject tothecondition thattheapplicant submit executed drainage andutilityeasements forthe
periphery ofbothlots.   



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
JULY 26, 2021
Page 4of26

Callies moved, Siakel seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 21-081, “AResolution
Approving aLotLine Adjustment forProperties at19210 Waterford Place and 5520 Vine
HillRoad.” All infavor.  Motion passed.   

D. CUP foraFence
Applicant:  Jacob Gustafson and Allison Spies
Location:  4865 Ferncroft Drive

Planning Director Darling stated thatthisisaConditional Userequest forafivefootfencewhere
afourfootfence ispermitted.  Shestated thatthisproperty backsuptoLakeWilliam whichhas
afifty footsetback tohighwaterelevation andbeyond thesetback, theapplicants areproposing
toenclose their rearyardwithafivefootblackvinylchainlinkfencetogivetheirdogsfreedom to
roamtherearyard. Thefencing regulations indicate thatfencesmaynotexceed four feetinheight
inthatportionoftherearyard, butallowfortallerfencesuponapproval ofaCUP.  ThePlanning
Commission recommended approval.    

Councilmember Gorham referenced pastdiscussion aboutasimilar request onClubLane.  He
stated thatheandanother oneofthePlanning Commissioners didnotwantthefencealong
Smithtown, butfeltitcouldbedonewithconditions which, hefeelswasthespiritoftheCUP.  He
stated thathefeelsitisapermitted use, withconditions.  Hestated thathedidnotseeconditions
listedinthissituation andaskedifitwasbecause ifwasblackchainlink, inthebackyard, or
because thereisadifferentiation between LakeWilliam andSmithtown.  Hestated thatforhim,  
lakeaccess isstillapriority fortheCity, appearance-wiseandhedoesnotknowiftheCityis
conditioning’ this approval andinstead justsaying itisokay, almost likeavariance withno
conditions.  Heaskediftherewasanydiscussion aboutconditions uponrecommendation.   

Planning Director Darling stated thattheonlycondition thatisincluded arethattheyhavetoget
thezoningpermit forthefencebefore theycaninstall itandtheCitywanted themtoshowthe
plansfortheretaining wall inthebackyard thatwasdiscovered across theproperty line.  They
havesincelettheCityknowthattheyareproposing toremove theretaining wallwhere itcrosses
theproperty linerather thansubmitanencroachment agreement.  Shestated thatotherconditions
werenotapplied, buttheCouncil couldapplyonethatthefence cannotbereplaced withanything
moreopaque thantheblackvinylchain linkmaterials.  Shestated thatthisisnotavariance so
theapplicant doesnothavetoshowpractical difficulties.  

Councilmember Gorham stated thattheapplication wasalmost likeitwaspretending tobea
variance andmaking arguments thatheconsidered ‘variance’ arguments, notconditional use
arguments.  Planning Director Darling stated thatmaybethecase, buttheCitylooksatthe
general standards oftheconditional use, whichsomeofthemaresimilar tothebroader variance
standards.    

Councilmember Gorham stated thattherewassomescreening discussion andsuggested that
perhaps thatbeincludedasacondition ofapproval.  Planning Director Darling confirmed thatthe
Council coulddothat, butitisasee-through fence, buttheycouldrequire somescreening thatit
would like.    

Councilmember Calliesstated thatinordertoapprove aCUP, theyhavetocomply withthe
conditions intheordinance andtherearenotanyotherparticular onesregarding fence, other
thaninordertohaveafencetaller thanfourfeettheyneedtogetaCUP.  Shestated thatthe



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
JULY 26, 2021
Page 5of26

applicants arecomplying withtheconditions asstated inthecode. Shestatedthatshedoesnot
seethepointofhavingscreening because thatwouldnegate theideabehindhavingachain link
fence.  SheaskedwhereCouncilmember Gorham would recommend thatscreening beplaced.   

Councilmember Gorham stated thathewasthinking between thefenceandthelake.  

Councilmember Calliesnotedthatshefeelsthatwouldblocktheviewmorethanjustthefencing.    

Councilmember Siakelstated thatshedoesnotreallyunderstand Councilmember Gorham’s
comment regarding lakeaccess.  

Councilmember Gorham askediftheCouncil feltstronglyaboutafiveorsixfoottallfenceon
Smithtown whether theyalsofeltthatwayaboutafivefootfenceonthebackside ofaproperty
abutting LakeWilliam.  Hestated thathisimpression isnoandnotedthathehadmeant toaskit
asanopenendedquestion.    

Councilmember Siakelexplained thatshehadalsoreflected ontherequest onClubLane, butin
that instance, itwasasixfoottall, solidwood fencedowntheproperty lineinanewlyconstructed
home.  Shestated thatshefeels liketheyaretwodifferent scenarios andthinkstheyshouldeach
beconsidered ontheirownmerits.    

Councilmember Johnson stated thatwasalsothebulkofthediscussion among thePlanning
Commission andtheirultimate decision wasthatthetwosituations, whilesomewhat similar, have
unique characteristics thatmake themcompletely separate.    

Commissioner Huskins stated thatpartofthePlanning Commission discussion wasthat, how
theyunderstood theapplication andtheplans, itincluded notonlythefence, butlandscaping near
thefencing.  Hestated thattheirunderstanding wasthatthelandscaping, asitmatured, would
growabove thefivefeet.  ThePlanning Commission hadadiscussion about thedifference
between afourandfivefoottallfenceiftheintentwastoput landscaping that, asitmatured,  
wouldcover thefenceandbeyond.  Hesuggested thattheCouncil maywanttoinclude thatasa
condition.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatshethinks theCouncil couldaddacondition that thetypeof
fencenotbechanged andcontinued tobeasee-through chain linkfence.    

MayorLabadie askedAllison Spies, theapplicant, iftheconditions beingdiscussed wereones
thattheywerewilling tomeet.  Ms. Spiesstated thattheyabsolutely wouldbefinewiththe
conditions discussed.  Shestated thattheydonotwanttoobscure theirownviewofthelakeand
thehopeistohelpitblendasmuchaspossible withtheexisting vegetation.     

Callies moved, Johnson seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 21-082, “AResolution
Approving aConditional Use Permit foraFence fortheProperty Located at4865 Ferncroft
Drive, with the condition that the fence type remain aschain link.” All infavor.  Motion
passed.   

E. Sign Ordinance Amendments

Planning Director Darling explained thatafterthelastelection andduetothenumberof
complaints theCityreceived, Council askedstafftoreview theregulations regarding campaign



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
JULY 26, 2021
Page 6of26

signage.  Shestated that theyspecifically askedstafftolookintowhether campaign signsshould
beprohibited inthepublic right-of-wayoriftheCityshould increase thesetback.  Staffpresented
information tothePlanning Commission withasummary tableofseveral othercitiesandprovided
background information fromStateStatutes andtheLeagueofMinnesota Citiesonthistopic.   
Sheexplained thatduringelection season which isdefinedasforty-sixdayspriortotheState
primary andtendaysfollowing theelection, citieshavenoability toregulate thenumber ofsigns
buttheycanregulatewhere thesignsmaybeplaced, including prohibiting themfrompublic rights- 
of-way.  Shestated thatanumber ofothercitiesdoprohibit themfrompublic rights-of-waywhich
Shorewood hasnotdonebutonlyrequiredatenfootsetback fromtheroadsurface.  Staffhas
alsoproposed providing aclearviewtriangleatintersections sosignsdonotblockvisibility around
corners.  Shegaveanoverview ofthesubstitution clauseandrelated definitions forcommercial
andnon-commercial speech which isanimportant addition tothecodebecause itallows non- 
commercial speech signsatanytimeoftheyearandnotjustduringelections.  Shereviewed the
Planning Commission discussions fromthreeseparate meetings, andexplained thattheyfound
agreater setback wouldbeinappropriate inareasoftheCitywherehomes arecloser thantypical
tothestreetandarerecommending thecurrent setback oftenfeetfromthestreet remain.  She
stated thatthePlanning Commission heldapublichearing andnotedthatinaddition totheletter
attached tothepacket, staff received another letteronJuly23, 2021notingconcerns withthe
amendment.  Shestated thatthisletterwase-mailed totheCouncil andwillnowbepartofthe
packet forthemeeting.    

Councilmember Calliesstated thatshehasafewconcerns aboutsome oftherecommended
changes.  Shestated thatshethinks tenfeetfromthestreet forcampaign signs isnotreally
feasible inmanyareasoftheCity, including herneighborhood.  Shestated thatsheisunsure
howstrictly thesethingsareenforced, buthasconcerns about putting itintotheregulations
because tenfeetisalot, whenitisactually measured.  Shesuggested changing thelanguage to
saysomething like, ‘nosignshall putinawaythatiscreatingahazard’.  Sheunderstands that
thisissubjective, butthinks thattenfeetistoomuchformanyneighborhoods intheCity.    

Planning Director Darling pointed outthatthecurrent setback istenfeet, andthisisnotbeing
changed.  CityAttorney Keanenotedthattenfeetisalsowhat isreferenced inStateStatute.     

MayorLabadie notedthattheCouncil hadnotaskedstafftoresearch thisitembutaskedifother
neighboring citieshavesimilar restrictions orsimilar language.  Planning Director Darling stated
thisinformation wasincluded inatablethatwasattached tothepacket andexplained that the
majority ofthecitiesprohibit signsintheright-of-way.    

Councilmember Gorham notedthattheonlycityhesawwithaten-footsetback wasMinnetonka
andaskediftherewereanythathadafive-foot setback. Planning Director Darling stated that
mostofthemjustsimplysaidnosignsinthepublic right-of-way.  Shestated therights-of-way
throughout theCityarevariedfromwhatisessentially acartway withaneightortwelvefootright- 
of-wayandinotherplaces thereissixty-fiveorseventy feet.  Itishardtoknowwheninvestigating
acomplaint, whichoneithappens tobe, which iswhystaff thinksitiswisetohavethetenfoot
setback.  Shestated thatitwouldalsobesomeothermeasurement, butthatitbeconsistent from
theedgeoftheroadway.  

Councilmember Callies asked aboutthenumber ofcomplaints thisissuereceives andstated that
shewould thinktherewouldbemore issueswithpermanent signs intheright-of-wayandnot
temporary signssuchaselection signs.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
JULY 26, 2021
Page 7of26

Planning Director Darling stated thattheydogetcomplaints aboutsignsplaced inthepublic right- 
of-way.  Shestated thattheyrecently hadacomplaint aboutacompany thathadjustgoneallthe
waydownSmithtown Roadandinstalled signsthatwereclearlywithin theright-of-way.  She
stated thatduring thelastcampaign period, theCityhadalotofcomplaints, buttheyweremostly
thatcertain candidates putinasignthatwasblocking theircandidate’ssign.    

Councilmember Siakelstatedthattoher, thismeasurement justprovides someclarification and
shedoesnothaveanissuewithit.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatsheunderstands thatsentiment, butdoesnotlikehavinga
regulation thattheCitysaystheyaregoing tobasically turnablindeyetoit.    

Councilmember Siakelstated thatshedoesnotfeel itisturningablindeyetoit, buttheCityhas
nocontrol overwhatpeopleputintheirownyardsandisjustclarifying thisandnoted thatthereal
issuetheCityhashadiswiththeright-of-way.    

AlanYelsey, 26335PeachCircle, stated thathesubmitted aletterregarding thisissue.  Hestated
thatitalways comesdowntoprinciples forhimandhehaslistened carefully totheCouncil and
hedoesnothearprinciples.  Hestated thattheright-of-waydoesnotsupersede therightof
freedom ofspeech anddemocracy.  Hestated that insteadofattempting tolimitpeople’srights
duringelections theyshouldbeencouraging themtoexpress theirownopinions.  Hestatingthat
holding thismeeting andnotallowing peopletospeakoverZoomisalsoalimitation ondemocracy
andfreedom ofspeech.  Hestatedthathewouldhavepreferred tospeaktotheCouncil over
Zoom.  Hestated thatitisabhorrent thattheydidthatandhewould liketoknowwhomadethat
decision because hewould liketochallenge thedecision.  Hestated thathehappens tobeone
ofthelargest political signplacers intheareaandexplained thatmostpeopledonotexactly know
whatright-of-wayis.  Hestated thatthenon-commercial signsthatareplacedthroughout town
arewithin tenfeetandthereason issotheycanbeseenbycarsandpeople walking by.  Many
peoplehavegrandfathered inplantings andfencesthatarewithin tenfeetfromtheroadwhich
makes itimpossible toplace asigninmanyproperties inthecommunity.  Heaskedwhat
superseded theCouncil’sdecision making andwhether itwasprotecting theCity’sright-of-way
because nooneenforces itfairlyorisittomakesurethatpeoplehavetherightoffreedom of
speech anditisnotimpeded asmuchaspossible, unless therearesafetyconcerns.  He
suggested thattherebewording thatsaysthatsignscannotbeplaced immediately bytheroad.   
Hestated that itishorrific towatchhistown limit freedom ofspeech inthismeeting, usingZoom
asanexample wherepeoplearenotallowed tospeakwhoarenotabletocometothemeeting
duetobeingdisabled ortheyarehometakingcareofsomeone.  Hestated thatthisadministration
doesnotseemtocareaboutdemocracy whatsoever, orholditasprecious ashedoes.  Hestated
thatthere isamovement nowthatwillchallenge theCouncilonallofthese aspects, legallyas
wellasattheballotbox.  Hestated thatlegally, hehaslookedattheStateordinance andsentit
totheCity, because itdidnotstateatenfootsetback.    

CityAttorney Keane explained thatduringgeneral election years therearebasically nosign
regulations forforty-sixdaysbeforeanelection andtendaysafter.  Mr. Yelseyagreed thatthere
isnorestriction onsize, location, ornumber ofsigns.  Hestated thattheStatedoesnotdictate
thatthisisdone.  Thesurrounding communities, forexample, TonkaBay, inthelastelection did
takesomeoftheirsignsfromright-of-wayforoneday.  Hestated thatitwasanadministrator who
didthatbecause this issueisnotproperly orequally enforced.  Hestated thattheCouncil is
attempting tointerfere withademocratic process thatisprecious tomany.  Hereiterated thathe



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
JULY 26, 2021
Page 8of26

feelstheyareinterfering withitbynotallowing theZoommeeting andalsofeelsthethreeminute
limitspeaking protocol isuncalled forandunnecessary.    

MayorLabadie statedthatMr. Yelsey isbringing upmanypoints thatarenotontheagenda.  

Mr. Yelsey stated thatheisbringing uptheprinciple ofdemocracy andiswhathewouldliketo
speakabout.  Hestated thatthesignissue isoneofthoseprinciples butheisalsoasking the
Council, before thechance islost, tobegintoenforce theprecious democracy andallowallto
havetherighttofreedom ofspeech without impeding it.  Heaskedwhytheright-of-wayisso
precious whenitwillnotevenbeenforced because therearesigns located withintheright-of-way
allovertheCityrightnow.  Hestated thatiftheCouncil isunclear aboutwhether something isa
goodideaornot, justaskthecitizens, aspartofthedemocratic process.  Hestated thatheis
100% opposed toanyrestrictions onwheresignscanbeplacedother thanforsite lineissuesor
thattheyprovide animpediment topedestrians orvehicles.    

MayorLabadie thanked Mr. Yelsey forhiscomments andnotedthathiscomments andopinions
havebeendulynoted.  SheaskedtheCouncil iftheywouldliketomoveforward withthis
discussion orcontinue itforafuturemeeting.    

Councilmember Gorham stated thathewould likeadditional timetodiscuss itandreferenced past
Planning Commission discussions regarding thedifferent sizesofright-of-way.    

Councilmember Siakel clarified thattheCouncil didnotcreate thisanditwasbrought tothemand
many itemsarebrought upbythepublic.  Shenoted thattheCouncil doesnotinvent things to
putontheagenda.  Shestated thatsheisfinetakingmore timetodiscuss.    

MayorLabadie stated thatshewouldalsoliketocontinue ittoafuturemeeting andaskedstaff
toplaceitonafutureagenda.  Shestated thatthiswillallowanyone inthecommunity tocome
anddiscuss thismatter inademocratic format inorder fortheirvoice tobeheard.      

8. ENGINEERING/ PUBLIC WORKS

A. Strawberry Lane Design Parameters

MayorLabadie stated thatbefore thediscussion begins, shewould liketoassure theresidents
thathermindhasnotalready beenmadeupabout thedesignandwhileshecannot speak forthe
restoftheCouncil, shebelieves theyhavealsonotmadeuptheirminds.  Shenoted thatshehas
readallthee-mails thatshehasreceived regarding thisproject.  

CityEngineer Buddeexplained theoriginal proposal andnotedthatithadprompted overwhelming
feedback fromtheresidents alongthecorridor.  Hestated thatthefeedback wasthattheydidnot
support theeight footwidetrailandwouldliketoseesomething similar toSmithtown Roadwhich
hasasixfoodwideconcrete sidewalk adjacent tothebackofcurb.  Hestated thatsomeofthe
feedback wasalsothatnosidewalk facilities werenecessary.  Hestated thatbasedonthe
feedback, staffdidamoredetailed lookatthesixfootwidesidewalk optiontoexplore prosand
consofhowitwouldaffect theproject.  Hestated thattheyfoundtheoverallwidthofthecorridor
wouldbereduced byseven feetfromwhatwasoriginally proposed.  Hestated thatthisreduced
widthhadsome nuances forotherportions oftheprojectandgaveabriefoverofthose items.   
Heexplained thatthisoptionwaspresented attheneighborhood meeting andtheCityreceived



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
JULY 26, 2021
Page 9of26

comments afterthatmeeting thattheresidents stilldidnot likethisoptionbecause itdidnotreduce
theimpacts infrontoftheirhouseonthesouthside, butthewestsidegainedaboutsixfeet
because oftheshift.  Hestated thatthereason thattheydidthiswastotakeadvantage ofthe
existing right-of-way.  Hegaveanoverview oftheprocess thathashappened, todate, regarding
thisproject, datingbackto2012.  Heexplained thatiftheCouncil decides tomovetheproject
forward, staffwouldcontinue todofinaldesignandcomplete right-of-wayacquisition with
whoever theyneedtothroughout themonthsofAugust andSeptember.  Thefinaldesignwillbe
completed inthewinterwhichwillbebrought backtotheCouncil forapproval oftheplan and
authorization tobid.  Hestated thataboutamonthortwolater theCouncil wouldbringitbackin
forawarding ofthecontract.  Heexplained that, ideally, treeremoval wouldhappen duringspring
andwinterof2022andthemajorconstruction happen inspring/summer/fallof2022.  Hestated
that, perCityCode, right-of-waywidths needtobeataminimum ofonehundred feetforarterial
roadways, sixtyfeet forcollector roadways, andfiftyfeet forlocalstreets.  Strawberry Lane isa
localstreet, andtheyhavebeenabletofititwithin thefiftyfootcorridor, withthesidewalk option.   
Afewoftheadjacent streets, neartheneighborhood arecurrently built tothesamestandard
beingproposed here.  Henotedthatthisdesignwillrequire acquiring roadway easement from
fouradditional property owners onthewestside.  Hestated thatfromadesignandfunctionality
standpoint, boththeoriginal optionandtherevised optionwouldworkandthedifference isthe
additional costandriskassociated withneeding toacquire additional properties.  Hestated that
reducing theprojectandshifting things, theCitywouldsaveabout $65,000onconstruction and
right-of-wayacquisition costs.  HenotedthattheCityhasreceived ballpark pricingfromXcel
Energy regarding moving theoverhead utilities tounderground, however therearetwoother
communication lines thatshare thesamepoles.  Hestated thattheballpark estimate isforaround
200,000fromXcelandwouldestimate thatitwillbeabout $100,000foreachother

communication utility tomovethemunderground.  Hestated thatthiswasnotoriginally included
inthescopeoftheprojectandtheCity’sposition isthatifthisispursued, thesecostswillbe100%  
assessable totheadjacent residents andwouldalsorequire agreement from100% ofthe
neighbors before theywouldpursue thatanyfurther.  Hestated thatitwouldbeaboutan $8,000
assessment.  Many homeshaveanoverhead service fromthepoledirectly totheirhouse, which
wouldcostanadditional estimated $2,000tomoveunderground.  Hestated thathis
understanding isthat, atthispoint, theCityisnotpursuing moving theutilities underground
because ofthosefactors.  Hestated thatheislooking forfeedback fromtheCouncil onwhether
theCityshouldpursue thesixfootwidesidewalk tiedtothebackofcurbortheeight footwide
trailwithafivefootboulevard.  Thefeedback fromtheneighborhood meeting wasabout95-99%  
infavorofthesixfootsidesidewalk versus theeightfoottrail.  Hestated thathewould alsolike
feedback onwhether ornotthe Cityshouldpursue shifting Strawberry Lanesixfeettothewest
onthesouthhalfwhichwillrequire acquiring right-of-wayfromfouradditional property owners, or
leaveitwhereitwaslastrecommended tocenter itwiththeavailable right-of-wayandnotimpact
theresidents onthewestside.    

Councilmember Callies asked whytheCitywasevenlooking atdoingthisprojectandwhatthe
impetus wasforimproving Strawberry Lane.  CityEngineer Buddestated thatfromhis
understanding therehavebeendrainage issuesupandaround thesurrounding areaforalong
time.  Hestated thatreconstruction ofStrawberry Lanecanhelp improve those issuesand
believes Strawberry Lanehasbeen identified intheCity’sCapital Improvement Plan (CIP) forat
least fiveyears.  Hestatedthat theCitygetsalotofcomments about thecondition oftheroadway
being terribleandalotofcomments frompeople expressing interest inbeingonCitywaterand
thisprojectwillhelpfacilitate anumberofresidents northofthetrailontoCitywater.  Hestated
that therehavealsobeenanumber ofcomplaints aboutsafety, soallofthosefactorsgointothe



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
JULY 26, 2021
Page 10of26

needfortheprojectandreiterated thatithasbeenontheCity’sCIPforfiveyearswiththisyear
beingthetargeted year fortheproject.    

Councilmember Siakelstated thatshehasservedontheCouncil for11 yearsandStrawberry
Lanewasoneofthefirstthingsdiscussed whenshecameontotheCouncil.  Shestated thatone
oftheneighbors participated ontheTrailCommittee whichwasputtogether withresidents from
throughout theCitythatlookedatwhere therewereexistingsidewalks, where theywereneeded,  
andwhattheconsensus around thosewas.  Sheexplained thatthegoaloftheTrailCommittee
wastolookatwhere theCitywaswithtraildevelopment, deviseaplan, andprioritize theprojects.   
Strawberry Lanehasalways beenoneofthetoppriorities because itlinkstoaschool.    

Councilmember Siakel stated thatthishasbeentalkedabout foralongtimeandtherehavebeen
residents thatcame intotalkabout it.  Shestated that ithasbeen talkedaboutatleastaslong
asshehasbeenontheCouncil forthetrailsandtheroadplan. Shestated thatshebelieves that
thisprojecthasactually beendelayed andwasoriginally supposed tobedonein2017.  She
stated thatsheknows theCityhasapplied forgrants foratrailalongStrawberry Lanebecause it
connects totheschoolandreiterated thatithasbeenaconversation foryears.  Shestatedthat
Minnewashta usedtobeasmallschoolandthat isnotlonger thecasesothereismore
conversation about increased safetyanddrivability alongStrawberry Lane.    

Siakel stated thatshecanseewhysomeone wouldnotwanttheeight-footparkway andagrees
thatmaybeoverkill inthissituation butthinkssomething likethesidewalk goingdownSmithtown
Roadwould makeitmuchsafer forpedestrians.  Shestated thatsheisinfavorofthesidewalk
and thinks itneedstobethere, butalsofelt theCityneeds tolistentoresidents andmakesure
thatsomething isdone thatiscompatible withtheexisting streetandputsomething inthat
everyone canagreeupon.  Shestated thatshesupports theideaofthesix-footsidewalk and
thinkswhatever canbedonewiththeleast impactandthelesstheCityhastopurchase property,  
thebetter.  Shestated thatanything theCitydoesabsolutely hastoimprove thedrainage inthe
area.  Shestated thatsheisconfident thattheCitycanworkwithresidents soStrawberry Lane
isdesigned inawaythatwillbeasleastdisruptive aspossible.    

MayorLabadie stated thatshehasservedontheCouncil forquiteawhileandprior tothatserved
onthePlanning Commission forseveral yearsandagreeswithwhatCouncilmember Siakel
stated, however, thereasoning isnotonlybecause theendofStrawberry landendsinaschool.   
There isalsothetrailrunning through, aparkattheotherend, andwillnowlinktothesidewalk.   
Shestated thatatthestartofthesediscussions theSmithtown sidewalk didnotexistandwas
justavision.  Shestated thattheCouncil will listentotheresidents, butstated thatsheisnotsure
thateveryone willwalkawayhappy fromthisproject.  Shestated thatthisisagenerational
decision andisadecision thatwill impactmorethanthecurrent property owners.  Shestatedthat
itwill impact theCity, theCityfootprint, andgenerations tocome.  TheCouncil takesthesetypes
ofdecisions veryseriously andwould liketoheartheresidents input.    

Councilmember Gorham askedwhat isbeingsavedbydoingright-of-way, fromthestandpoint of
treesorproperty.  Hestated thattheproject rightnowisverybroadandnotverynuanced.  He
stated thathedoesnotbelieve theCityhastriedtominimize theimpact ofthisasmuchas
possible.  Hestated thatitmaybepossible thattheCityhaslookedatitenough, butpresenting
over-simplified plansmakes itappearasthough theCityhasnotlooked atitenough.    Hestated
thattheblockdiagrams beingpresented feelveryprogrammatic.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
JULY 26, 2021
Page 11of26

CityEngineer Buddestated thatstaffstarted thefinaldesignearlier thisspring, sothatprocess
hasjustbegun.  Hestated that itishardtoknowallthenuances without getting intothemeatand
potatoes andgoing through finalplandevelopment.  Hestated thatevery timeanewoptioncomes
up, theymustdevelop newplanspecifics which takestimeandenergy.  Hestated thattheyhave
lookedatthesethreeoptions now, andinthegrandscheme ofthings, thetreelossbetween the
twooptions withasixfootsidewalk hedoesnotknowyetbecause hehastocontinue to
coordinate withdrainage, watermain, andprivate utilities, whichallenduphaving reasons thata
treecouldbetakendown.  Hestated thathedoesnotknowthosekindsofdetailsyetand
explained thatitishardtogivefirmanswers onwhatalltheimpacts willbewithout diving into
plandetails.     

Councilmember Gorham stated thatheunderstands, butitisdifficult todecidebasedonaplan
that seems likea25-30% design.  CityEngineer Buddestated that itisprobably about50%  
because theyhaveaverygoodunderstanding ofthedrainage andwhattheywould liketoimprove
aswellasagoodunderstanding ofwhere theythinkthewatermain wouldgo.  However, allthe
factors about tweaking aroadalignment messes allthatstuffup, soitwillneedtoberedone.  He
explained thatfromhisperspective, ifheknewwhatwerethemostsensitive itemsthattheCity
couldtrytominimize, theycanworkonthosethings. Hegavetheexample oftreelossand
explained thatifthatwasthemost important, theycoulddothings tominimize tree lossbythings
likealternative construction methods orpeople beingmoreaccepting torootimpacts without
having totaketheentire treedown.  Hestated thattherearethings, inthisregard, thathavenot
evenbeenlookedat.    

Councilmember Gorham stated thatonethought regarding thiswholeprocess isthatthisisnota
finaldesign.  Hesuggested thattheCitystartcalling thisphase thepreliminary designwithfinal
designbeingsomething that iswaydowntheroadwhenitisbeingbidout.  Hestated thathe
thinks theterminology scarespeople. CityEngineer Buddeexplained thatheconsiders the
feasibility studybeingthepreliminary design.    

Councilmember Gorham statedthatfromadesign perspective whenlookingatthis, itislooking
atdrainage andminimizing right-of-way, butfeelstheruralcharacter shouldbesomewhere on
theagenda asthedesign process begins.  CityEngineer Buddestated thataruraloptionwas
never reallyonthetablefromwhenhestarted because theCitystandard isurbanandtodo
stormwater improvements.  Hestated thathehascompared theimpacts ofurbanversus rural
crosssections inother cities, andhesaidthereisnodoubt thattherewouldbemoretreeloss
andgreater impacts witharuralcrosssection toaddress drainage issues.  Therewouldbelarge,  
wideditches, which would requirealotmoretrees tocomedownandalotmore impact tothe
frontyardsandmost likelyalotlessaesthetic.  Hestated thathecannotdowhattheyareasking
himtodofromadrainage perspective andkeepitaruralsection because therewouldbeditches
thatareeight feetdeepinpeople’sfrontyards.    

Councilmember Gorham stated thathethinks thatinformation ispartofthestoryandhasnot
beencommunicated totheresidents adequately.  Hestated thathethinksCityEngineer Budde
isdoingthingsandlookingatthis, buthehasaquestion aboutwhytheroadisaswideasitis
andaskedifitcouldbenarrower.  CityEngineer Buddeexplained thatitcouldbenarrower, but
hewouldnotrecommend itfromanengineering perspective withrelation towhattheCityistrying
todowithrespect tostandards andsafety accommodations.  Hestated thathehasseenstreets
thatarenarrower, andtheyjustdonotfunction.  Hegavetheexample ofasituation where there
isonelandscaping truckthatcomesandparks their trucktounloadtheir lawnmower which means
thattwocarscannotgetpast.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
JULY 26, 2021
Page 12of26

Councilmember Gorham stated thatthisisgoodinformation andsuggested thatthiskindof
information beincluded inthe ‘story’.  Shorewood ischanging, onestreetprojectatatime, and
eventually, allthestreetswill looklikeSmithtown whichiswhyeveryone ishere, because they
likethewaytheirstreet looksnow.  Hestated thattherearealltheseother thingstugging atthe
design, butthemessage isonly ‘hereiswhatIthinkshouldhappen’ without explaining the
process.  Hestated thathefeelstheprocess isnotrobustenough because ofhowmanypeople
areattending themeeting.  CityEngineer Budde stated that inhisexperience, youcannever
makeeveryone happyonaproject.    

Councilmember Callies askedabout themention inthestaffreport thatstated staffhadlookedat
maintaining theoriginal roadway alignment without theshift totheeast.  Shestated that ifthatis
maintained, sheasked whytherewouldbeadditional right-of-wayacquisition thatwouldbe
necessary.  CityEngineer Buddeexplained thathowsomeoftheright-of-waywasacquired in
muchofthisareaisthatsomeofthenewerdevelopments suchasShorewood Oaks, whenthey
plat, theyarerequired todedicate alittlemoreright-of-way, sothatiswhere theadditional width
comes from.  Someoftheotherrights-of-wayareverytight, inhisopinion, theCityshouldhave
additional right-of-wayforthingssuchastheneeded signage orsnowstorage.    

Councilmember Calliesasked whathemeantwhenhesays ‘alignment’.  CityEngineer Budde
stated thatabetterdescription maybe ‘keeping thesamecenter-lineoftheroadway’.   
Councilmember Callies askedformoredetailsonthenecessary right-of-wayacquisitions withthe
different options.  CityEngineer Buddestated thatiftheCitykeeps theexisting alignment, itwill
require acquisition fromseven toeightproperty owners.  Hereviewed theoptions andthe
acquisitions thatwouldbenecessary.    

Councilmember Johnson askediftheintentwastobringeachadditional variable ofthisproject
backbefore theCouncil, suchasthings liketheoverallalignment andtheoptionaboutburying
power lines.  CityEngineer Budde explained thathewouldlikeasmuchfeedback astheCouncil
willgivehim.    

MayorLabadie confirmed thatCityEngineer Budde isseeking feedback onthewidthofthe
sidewalk ofeithersixfeetoreight feetandtheinclusion ofafivefootboulevard.  Shestated that
theoverwhelming response fromtheneighbors onStrawberry Lanetogowiththesixfootwide
sidewalk.    

Councilmember Johnson stated thathehasfieldedalotofcallsandcanonlyrecall threeparties
thatsuggested moving forward withtheeight-footsidewalk andeverybody elsewasinsupportof
sixfeet.  Councilmember Callies statedthatshehadalsoreceived callsande-mails, andsome
would prefer thattherenotbeanything.  Shestated thatshedoesnoteventhinkthereisapoint
inevendiscussing aneight footsidewalk withaboulevard because nobodysupports that.    

Councilmember Siakelstated thatsheagreed because eightfeet isjusttoomuchandthinks the
sixfootwidththatisconsistent withSmithtown Roadmakessense.    

MayorLabadie stated thatsheagreed andaskediftherewasanyone fromtheaudience would
liketodiscuss theconcept ofaneight footwidesidewalk withafivefootboulevard.  There were
nointerested parties.    

Therewasaconsensus togivedirection moving forward withthesixfootsidewalk option.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
JULY 26, 2021
Page 13of26

MayorLabadie notedthattheother thingCityEngineer Buddehasaskedforfeedback onisthe
easements andthecentering oftheroadway.  SheaskedforCouncil inputonthisissuebefore
turning itover toresident feedback.  

Councilmember Callies stated thatshefeelstheCityshould minimize thenumberofacquisitions
thatarenecessary, anditispreferable touseexisting right-of-way.  Councilmember Siakelstated
thatshewouldagree.    

Councilmember Gorham stated thathedoesnotfeelasthoughtheCouncil hasenough
information tomakeajudgement callonwhat theimpactofright-of-wayversus minimal right-of- 
waywillbe.  Hestated thatthisisjustonesuggestion forminimizing theimpactbutaskedifthere
maybeotherwaystominimize theimpact tothestreet.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatsheisunsureofhispointandnotedthattheissuewould
primarily becost.  Councilmember Gorham stated thathedoesnotthinktheissueshouldbejust
aboutcostandnotaboutminimizing theimpact ofthestreetasmuchaspossible.  Onecalculus
isright-of-way, butthatisjustoneingredient intherecipeofthedesignandexplained thathe
cannot makeadecision basedsolelyonright-of-way.  Heasked iftheCouncil wasreallybeing
askedtomakeadecision onwhathadbeenpresented because hedidnotthinkthatinformation
really toldthemanything.    

Councilmember Johnson statedthat, asaCouncil, theyhaveafiduciary responsibility tomanage
costs, however, what looksgoodonpaper intermsofcost, doesnotnecessarily lookgoodwhen
youwalkdown thestreet.  Hestated thatashewalksdown thestreetandseesthestakesonthe
southsideofthestreet, heseesaninequitable process because onesideofthestreet receives
sixfeettotheiryardandtheothersideloses.  Hestatedthat, tohim, thissplits theneighborhood
inhalfandcreates the ‘haves’ andthe ‘havenots’ whichdoesnotcreateagoodneighborhood
feeling.  Hestated thathewouldbeinfavorofpurchasing additional right-of-wayinordertocome
upwithamoreequitable solution.  Hestated thatheagrees thattherearesomeothervariables
thatneedtobetackled, buttheymaynotbeappropriate atthispoint intheprocess, butfeelsthey
doneedtobediscussed.    

MayorLabadie stated thatshethinks itisclear thattheCouncil hasnotyetmadeuptheirminds
andinvitedthosepresent intheaudience togivefeedback totheCouncil onthisproject.    

DaveHalbmaier, 26395Shorewood OaksDrive, stated thathehaslivedatthisaddress for28
years.  Hethanked the threeCouncilmembers whoresponded totheir invitation andagreed to
meetwiththeresidents ofStrawberry Lane, on-site, tolistentotheirconcerns anddiscuss the
project.  Hestatedthathefeltthatwasveryhelpful.  Hestated thattherehavebeenanumber of
independent neighborhood meetings outside ofthemeeting withtheCityEngineer.  Hestated
thathewasaskedtospeakasaspokesperson foranumber ofpeopleasawayofbeingefficient
butclarified thathedoesnotspeak forallthepeopleonStrawberry Lane.  Hestatedthat thefirst
partoftheircommunity input isnotjustabout theproject, buttheprocess.  Hestated thathehas
heardsome thingsabout COVID butnotedthathehaslivedherefor28yearsandwhatwasdone
inthissituation wasnotenough communication.  Hestated thatwhentheCitywasready tostart
theproject, theyfelttheyshould havesatdownwiththeresidents andhadameeting aboutwhat
itwouldmeantothemanddothestakestuff first.  Hestated thatinreading thesecond goalof
theComprehensive Plan, theCitywants toengage community members andestablished twoway
communication.  HereadaloudthatportionoftheComprehensive Plangoals.  Hestated thatif



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
JULY 26, 2021
Page 14of26

heoverlays thatgoalwiththeprocess thathashappened, thereisastarkdifference.  Hestated
thatregardless oftheiropinion about theproject, everybody hasagreedonthatpoint thatthere
needs tobemorethanwhatwasdonetoengage thecommunity members.  Hestated thatthe
Cityshouldhaveknowthatthiswasgoingtobeacontroversial project right fromthestartwhich
iswhytheCityneeds tostart listening topeople andtalkingtothembeforeanything isdone.  He
statedthathethinks theprocess isbackwards andwhiletheCouncil islistening now, the
community trusthasbeenviolated andmoneyhasbeenwasted.  Hestated thatitisgoingtobe
alothardernowtoconvince thoseeightresidents totrusthowtheCitywillhandle this.    

Halbmaier stated thattheyunderstand oneoftheproject goals issafety, butheisunconvinced
thattheprojectwillmakeStrawberry Lanesaferoverall.  Hestated thatforthirtyminutes oneither
sideoftheschool dayitprobably will, butfortheother twenty-threehours intheday, itwillnot
maketheroadanysafer.  Hestated thathealsothinks thattherewillbemorecarstraveling on
Strawberry Laneandtheywillbetraveling faster.  Hestated theyfeelitwillbemoredangerous
forthelightrailor trail crossing withpeopleonbikesanddrivers around andwillalsobemore
carsparkedontheroad.  Hestated thathehadfourchildren thatattended Minnewashta andthey
survived walking andbikingontheroad.  Heagreed thatitcanbedangerous butpropercaution
needs tobeusedandtaught forallroadways.  Hereiterated thatheisnotconvinced thatthenet
overall safety willbeimproved.    

Halbmaier stated thathehasheard fromalotofresidents thattheylikethenarrow street lookof
Strawberry LaneandtheydonotwanttoliveonaSmithtown RoadorChanhassen withuniform
widestreets thatfeelandlookthesame.  Strawberry Laneisalargepartofthediversity ofthe
neighborhood andiswhatresidents likeaboutShorewood.  Theyarenotinterested inhavinga
Smithtown Roadorhavingnice, uniform streets.  Hestatednothavinguniform streets iswhat
makes Shorewood uniqueandissomething residents aresoconcerned about.  Hestated that
bothproposals donotsharetheburdenoftheprojectwiththeresidents onbothsidesof
Strawberry Lanewhichmeanssomeresidents will loseone-thirdoftheiryardanddriveway while
residents ontheothersidewillhaveasixfootexpansion oftheirs.  Hestated thateventheoption
thathasnoboundary change shiftsalltheburden theotherway.    

OntheJune22, 2021, Zoomcall, Halbmaier asked theCouncil tonotmisunderstand wantinga
sidewalk versusatrail.  Hestatedthatitwasjustacomparison ofwhat istheleastevil, which
wasthesidewalk.  Hestatedthat thereisnotalargegroupofpeoplewhowantthesidewalk at
all, sohethinks theCouncil hasmisunderstood thatsentiment.  Hestated thatthereisvirtually
nodifference between thetrailorthesidewalk because theburden isstillone-third lossofmany
people’sfrontyardsanddriveways.  Iftheywanttolookatminimizing community resident impact,  
thereneeds tobeamorebalanced approach.  Hestated thattherewere10community members
whocameovertohishouse andtalkedabout thisandall10ofthosepeople signedadocument
thatstated thattheydidnotapprove ofDesignAwhichshifts thecenterline ofthesidewalk.  He
stated thathedoesnotwanttheCouncil tothinkthatthesidewalk, asdiscussed ontheJune22,  
2021, Zoomcall, issomething thattheresidents agreewith, because theyarenot.    

Halbmaier stated thattheyarealsoconcerned thatonthenorthsideoftheroadtherewasno
staking doneforwhere theroadway wouldendwhich isconfusing.  Theproject, intheiropinion,  
shouldbebasedontheoverall costtotheresidents, theenvironment, andtheCity.  Theydonot
feelliketheprojectorpriority should bebased onconvenience totheCityortheexpedience of
theproject.  Bothproposals donotrepresent thelowestcostorarethebestproposal.  Hestated
thatneither proposal isidealandbelieves thereisabetterproposal outthereandmore
compromises thatcanbemade.  Hestated thattheyareasking fortheCouncil toreconsider the



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
JULY 26, 2021
Page 15of26

design parameters andfindasuperior andmorebalanced solutioneventhough itwillrequire
morework.    

ScottBecker, 6165Strawberry Lane, thanked theCouncil fortaking thetimetoanswer somany
e-mails fromtheresidents.  Hestated thatwhenitcomes toevaluating aproject, henoticed that
inthefeasibility report that itprettymuchstated thegoalistoimprove drainage andbring the
roadsuptothestandards, buthehasbeeninvolved inalotofverylargedevelopment projects
andtheyalsoinclude what theproject constraints were.  Hestated that theconstraints werebriefly
mentioned suchassafety, environment, aesthetics, traffic flow, property values, happiness ofthe
residents.  Hestated thatthe $150,000isadropinthebucket compared tothevalueofwhat is
beingdonetotheenvironment bytakingoutallthesetreesandisalsoadropinthebucket
compared totheirhomevalues.    

Beckerstated thathewould liketofocusonsafety andnotedthathehasfoundthreepublications
thattalkabout lanewidthsandsafety.  Hestated thathesharedoneofthemwithCouncilmember
Gorham whenhevisited, butexplained thathehadfoundtwomoresincethattime.  Heread
aloudquotes fromthepublications andnotedthathecangetcopiesofthemtotheCouncil.  He
stated thathethinks thatbygoingwiththewider road, thisincreases thehardscape somuch that
therewillbeadrainage problem.  Hestated thatover-development inaswampier area ishaving
adomino effect throughout theCity.  Hestated thatoneofthethings thatheseesasa
shortcoming isnotjustsaying thattheir jobistoputinaroadaccording tothestandards anddo
thedrainage, because therehastobeotherpractical constraints thatmustbeconsidered.    

Becker stated thathethinksproperty valueswillgodownandtherewillbealotofunhappy
residents andnotjustthosethatliveontheirside, butalsothosethatlikewalking andlookingat
things.  Hestatedthathethinks theCityneedsabroader morecomprehensive view inevaluating
thesedesigns.  Hestatedthatwhere theedgeoftheroadis, isfineanddoesnotunderstand why
itneeds tomove.  Hestated thathedoesnotunderstand thedifference between right-of-way
acquisitions andgetting utilityeasements.  Hestated thathefeelsthereareways tominimize this
andnotedthatheandhiswifearenotsayingnotothesidewalk ortheprojectoverall, butwould
likefortheCitytofindawaytohaveabalanced solution toallthethings thatmatterbecause
MayorLabadie iscorrect thatthisisagenerational decision.    

MayorLabadie askedMr. Becker toprovide copiesofthedocuments thathereferenced toCity
Halltotheycanbedistributed totheCouncil.    

CindyBecker, 6165Strawberry Lane, stated thatwhentheirhomeswerebuilt, thebuilders built
withtheroadinmind.  Shestated thatsomepeople, including her, putatreetooclosetotheroad
andunderstands thatitwillgoaway.  Shestatedthatshehascometoterms withthetreeleaving,  
butexplained thatshecannot moveherhouse.  Shestated thatherneighbor’sdriveway is
currently fifty-threefeetlongandherdriveway isfifty-ninefeet.  Shestated thatwiththeproposal,  
theneighbor’sdriveway willbefifty-ninefeetandherswillbeforty-onefeet.  Shestated thatthe
proposed plancreates anunbalanced neighborhood thatjustisnotaesthetically pleasing.  She
stated thatifthesideoftheroadcanbeleftwhere itis, theneighbor’sdriveway willbefifty-three
feetandherswillbeforty-seven, butthatiswhattheyconsider ‘fair’ eventhough itdoesnotfit
theperfect right-of-way.    

Becker stated thatinMarchof2019, theU.N. General Assembly met, andspeakers warned the
countries oftheworld thattheyhadelevenyearsbefore therewasirreversible climate change.   
Shereferenced recent publications thatuseclimate dataofwhat isgoingonintheworld thatsay



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
JULY 26, 2021
Page 16of26

theremaybeirreversible climate change insevenyears.   Shereferenced floods inGermany,  
wildfiresoutsideofthenormal wildfireseason, andterrible airquality.  Shestatedthatitmaybe
inconvenient forpeople tochange theirwayoflookingatthewaytheyneedtolive.  Deforestation
isknowntobethemajorcause fortheearth’sinability toabsorb itscarbon overload.  Thetrees
onStrawberry Laneareoverone-hundred yearsold andpatting ourselves onthebackwhen
saplings areplanted toreplace thesehugetreesdoesnotreplace theproblem that isbeing
caused.  Shestated thatshethinkspeople shouldplantmoresaplings, butnotcutdownoldtrees.   
Shestated thatitistheage-oldquestion ofwhether theCitybecomes partoftheproblem orpart
ofthesolution.  Trees, inaddition tocollecting thecarbon, prevent flooding.  Shestated thatshe
isfighting tominimize theprojectandkeepitmorebalanced sothat theneighborhood maintains
itsneighborhood appeal.  Shestated that theywanttokeepthequaint, tree-lined, slowmoving
roadandnotallowittobecome athrough streetwith fasttrafficandbekeptasaneighborhood.    

ChrisMacomber, 26390PeachCircle, stated thathehasaverybusy jobdowntown andpartof
thereason theyboughtsofaroutwasbecause hewaswilling totakealongerdrivetogethome
andbecalmandenjoytheproperty andtheir lovelystreet.  Hestatedthatitisimportant forhim
tokeepitthatway.  Heaskedwhatthedegreeofclear-cutwouldbeoneithersidefortheroad
project, regardless ofwhichoption isselected.  Hestatedthathisunderstanding isthatitisfive
totenfeetandnotedthatmanyoftheresidents havelandscaping orothernatural barriers onthe
property.  Hestated thatwhenheasked thisquestion lastyear, whatheheardbackwas that it
willgrowbackintwotothreeyears.  Hestatedthatwhileheunderstands thatthisisagenerational
decision, thatmeans twoorthreeyearswhere theproperty isexposed sohewould liketoclearly
knowwhattheadditional impact isbecause thisisofvaluetotheresidents.    

MarkHoffman, 6195Strawberry Lane, stated thattheirmainconcern isthattheywould liketosee
atrafficstudywhile theproject isgoing through thefeasibility period.  Hestated thatthereis
alreadyaspeeding issueandwould askthatwidening thestreetbepausedtoevaluate whether
narrowing thestreetabitwouldmakesenseandconsider afiveorsixfootsidewalk forsafety
purposes.    

BobHennenkamp, 6075Strawberry Lane, stated thattheproposal hasthebiggest swathof
property takenfromhimandquestioned whether itwouldbedonebyeminent domain.  Heasked
ifhehadanylegal recourse towards theactualvalueoftheproperty thathewouldbelosing if
thisproject moves forward.  Hestated thathehasnodoubt thathewill losethebigmaple tree
thatheplanted whenhebuilt thehouse in1978eventhoughhethought hehadplanted itfar
enough back.    

CityAttorney Keanestated thatforanyportionofhisproperty thatisacquired, theCityisfirst
obligated tomakeanofferandstriveforavoluntary acquisition.  Hestated thatithastobeafair
marketofferbasedoncertified appraisers determination ofdamages andthentherearethree
morestepsintheprocess toensure thatifanindividual isstillnotsatisfied thereisahearing
process withCommissioners whowill listenandthereareadditional processes toabidebythe
constitutional requirement under theFifthAmendment thatproperty shallbetakenwithout fair
compensation.  HestatedthattheCitystrives toavoid theprocess bymaking fairoffersupfront.   

Councilmember Siakelnoted thattoherknowledge, theCityhasnoteverusedeminent domain.  

Michelle Lee, 26400Shorewood OaksDrive, stated thatcurrently herhousecannot evenbeseen
fromthestreetbecause thereissomuchgreenery.  Shestated thatwheneverything comes
down, itappears asthoughherentiresideyardwouldbetakenoutandshewillhavenoprivacy,  



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
JULY 26, 2021
Page 17of26

plusanearby sidewalk.  Shestated thatshealsoheard thatshewillbeunabletoputupafence
andaskediftherewouldbeanykindoftreecompensation soshewouldplantprivacy treesorif
therewasanything shecandotorebuild thatwithoutsimplyusing saplings.  

MayorLabadie statedthateachparcelwouldbehandled individually basedonwhether thetrees
areintheright-of-wayorontheirproperty.    

CityEngineer Buddestated thatthereareseveral possible scenarios andnoted thatifthetreeis
inyourproperty andnotinadrainage andutilityeasement, andtheCityhastoacquire it, they
wouldbecompensated, most likelywitharightofentryagreement oreasement.  Ifthetreeisin
adrainage andutilityeasement already, thosearekindoftheoddball oneswhere, atthispoint,  
theywerenotplanning oncompensation.    

Ms. Leestated thatthenallofthegreenery willbegoneandshefeelsitisnoteworthy thatthis
willreallychangeherproperty completely, which isfrustrating.  Shestated thatshemovedhere
in2018anddidnotknowabout thisprojectandonlyfoundoutaboutitwhenaneighbor cameby
totellherabout it.  Shestated thatitwouldhavebeennicetoreceivealetteraddressed toheror
totheresidents whowouldbeaffected bythisproject tooutlinewhatwasbeingplanned.  She
stated thatbettercommunication wouldhavebeennice.   

Councilmember Siakelstated thatsheisthesecond resident whobrought thisupandexplained
thatshelivesoveronBirchBluffRoadandtheirroadisupforconstruction twoyears fromnow
andeveryone onherstreetgotapostcard sayingthatitwascomingup.  Shestatedthatshe
thought thiswasalsodoneinthissituation andasked ifshewasmistaken.  Shestated thatshe
feelstheCouncilhasreally triedtodomoretocommunicate withresidents andextendthetime
periodwhereresidents areinformed aboutupcoming projects.  Shestated thatitisfrustrating to
continue tohearresidents continue to bringup communication andsaytheyarejustlearning
about thisproject.  Sheaskedifthetreesandshrubbery thatarelocated within theeasement
weretherewhenshemoved inorifshehadplanted them.  Ms. Leeexplained thatshehadmoved
in2018sotheywerealready there.    

Councilmember Siakelstated thatseemstobeaproblem intheCitywherepeopleareplanting
andencroaching oneasements.  Ms. Leestated that ithasbeenreported thatabout95percent
ofpeopledidnotwantthetrailandaskediftheyknewhowmany peopledonotwantasidewalk.   
Shestated thatsheisanappraiser andhasdone itsince1998.  Shestated thatinherlineofwork
shehasseenalotofstreets thathavefasterspeeds thanStrawberry Laneandtheyseemtoget
alongfinewithoutasidewalk.  Shestated thatithasbeensaidthattheywanttolookmorelike
Smithtown thanhaveatrailbutexplained thatshedoesnotwanttolookanything likeSmithtown
Road, nordoesshethinkitshould looklikethat.  Shestated thatbasedonwhoshehastalked
to, shedoesnotknowanyone whoreallywants thesidewalk andiftheroadisjustwidened abit,  
theremaybeabitmoresafety, butwidening itwillalsomake people drivealotfaster.  Shestated
thatshedoesnotthinkthatStrawberry Laneissuchabusyroadthatitneeds tobewidened and
includeasidewalk andthinks itismorejustaquietstreet.    

AlanYelsey, 26335PeachCircle, stated thatpriorities arecritical, andhedoesnothearpriorities
whenresidents aretalking totheCityaboutmostanyproject.  Heaskedtheresidents ifthey
received acardfromtheCityearlyonintheprocess thatnotified them.  Heasked forashowof
handsofthosethatreceived thenotification.  Afterashowofhands, Mr. Yelsey stated thathe
washappy thatmostpeople raised theirhandsandhadreceived notification.  Heaskedfora
showofhandsofwhichresidents havehadflooding orwater issueswhere runofffromthestreets



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
JULY 26, 2021
Page 18of26

orsewers isonyourproperty imposing eitheranuisance ordamaging theproperty.  Hestated
thatthisproject ispartlyoriented toremove stormwater fromthestreetsandmove ittowhere it
goes, whichrightnowisnowhere sincetheydonothaveapproval oraproject, thatisbuilding the
holding pondsatSmithtown.  Hestated thatheistotally opposed tothatproject because theCity
hasnotresponded totheresidents questions properly sothereisnotassurance thatprojectwill
meet theirneeds.  Hestatedthatheisalsoconcerned that theprojecthasnotresponded to
resident concerns aboutStrawberry LaneorPeach Circle.  Hestated thatoneofthethingsthat
hasnotbeencovered arewhatthecontingency planisifSmithtown Pondisnotbuilt.  Hestated
thatheisnotinsupportofeitherproject, atthistime, until theCitycanprovide assurance that it
willmanage thoseprojects effectively.    

Yelsey stated thattheresidents shouldnotwanttheCitytodiguptheirstreet iftheydonothave
aplacetoputthestormwater.  Hestated thattheyalsowanttoputindrinking waterforpeople
whowanttohaveCitywater ratherthanwells.  Heaskedforashowofhandsfromthosewhodo
notalready haveCitywaterwhether theywouldsignupforCitywater.  Hestated thatoneperson
raised theirhand.  Heaskedforashowofhandsofhowmanyalready hadCitywaterand
explained thatquiteafewpeopleraised theirhands.  Hestated thattheCityshouldknowwho, if
any, areinterested inhooking uptoCitywaterbefore theproject moves forward.    

Yelsey stated thattheresidents hadasked thattheconstruction occurwhenthereisnoschool in
session andexpressed concern about safetywithhaving theroaddugupforafewmonths.  He
stated thatsafety isnotnecessarily justthewidthofthestreetandthesidewalks, andnotedthat
bicyclists would stillbeatriskatthatstreetandtheintersection.  Thetrail isaverydangerous
intersection that isnotwelldonebytheCityandThree RiversParkDistrict.  Speeding hasbeen
achronic issuesincehehasbeenhereandhasnotbeenaddressed, nordoesheseeapolice
presence ormonitoring ofspeed.    

Thepeople inShorewood Oaksandthatentireareaareatriskofpeople cutting through the
neighborhood fromHighway 7togettoHighway 19orviceversa.  Yelsey stated thattheentire
situation ofcut-throughs andspeed issolvable iftheCityactsdiligently andmakesitapriority.  If
theCitywantstrees tobeapriority, thentheyshould protectasmanytreesaspossible which
shouldbetheengineer’smandate orhaveapriority tominimize thedamage toeveryone’s
property.  Hestated thatitshouldnothavetobeacasewhere theengineer’sreport ispresented
andtheneveryone feelsliketheyhavetoscramble andfeelliketheyareonthedefensive totry
toprotect theirproperty andtheir interests.  Hestated thatisnotthewayagooddemocracy
shouldwork.   

JoleneScott, 6150Strawberry Lane, stated thatsheisoneoftheonesthatiftheroadway were
tostaywhere itis, thatproperty wouldneedtobeacquired.  Ameeting wascalledbetween them
andtheCityEngineer anditwasindicated tothemthatautilityeasement maybepossible which
issomething thattheywouldbemoreamenable to.  Shestated thatthereisalotoffearand
mistrust fromhowthisproject hasprogressed, atleastoverthesummer.  Shestated thatthere
arealotofquestions andaskingquestions hasnotalways yielded answers soatthispointalot
ofthisisstillunclear totheresidents.    

Scottstated thatsheexpected tohearaclear-cutanswer attheneighborhood meeting astowhat
kindofproperty righttheywere looking toacquire sosheandherhusband couldbeprepared to
thinkabouthowthatwouldallwork, butthatwasnotfinalized.  Shestated thatshefeelsthat the
Council moving thisproject forward ispremature because therearesomanythingsyettobe
lookedat. Shesuggested thattheCouncil lookatthegraphic thatisincludedonthewebsite for



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
JULY 26, 2021
Page 19of26

thisproject because ithasapinklinethatclearly shows thenumber oftreesthatwillbetakenand
goesintopeople’sproperty beyond theCity’sright-of-wayandthathasnotbeenshownat
tonight’smeeting.  Shestated thatshefeelsthisisindicative forhowthisprojecthasbeen
conveyed totheresidents intheareathatthingsarekindofhidden, ormasked.  Noteverything
isclearandnotalltheinformation isgiventotheresidents sotheycanknowwhat isgoingonand
feelcomfortable withwhattheCityisdoing.  Shestated thatmanyresidents areconfused and
manydonotknowwhat ishappening.   Shestated thatitisunfortunate because noweveryone
isnervous andlooks downtheirstreetandsees thegiant treecanopy thatwillbelostand
unfortunately, theCouncil doesnotgettoseethatintheirpacketnordothepeople watching from
home.  Sheencouraged everyone togoonlineandlookattheinformation onthewebsite.    

Scott stated thatbeyond thetreesbeingtakendown, theCityEngineer hasalsotalkedabout
potential rootdamage thatcouldcauseevenmoretreestocomedownwhichwillfurther impact
thelookandfeelofStrawberry Lane.  Shestated thatthenatural, woodsy feeloftheCitygives it
character.  Shestatedthatshethinksitneeds tobelookedatquiteabitfurtherbeforeCouncil
acts.  Shestated thatshethinks therearemanyotherwaysthatthedrainage issuecanbe
approached without moving forward withthisplan.  Shenotedthatanycommunication shehas
received priortothissummer’scraziness hasbeenaboutdrainage andexplained thatshedidnot
anticipate aSmithtown Roadtypeofroadway coming downStrawberry Lanewithasidewalk and
largeroadwidthandhugecurbs.  Shestated thatwhenshereceived apostcard thatsaid
something like ‘Strawberry LaneDrainage Project’ onit, shedidnotanticipate whatwasultimately
presented.  Shestated thatthereisnotclaritynorisittransparent andherhearingabout the
scopeandbreadthofwhatcouldhappen fromherneighbors andnotfromtheCity isvery
disappointing.  Shestated thattheneighborhood isconcerned thatwhat theyallloveabout the
placethattheylivewillbelost.    

Scottstated thatthethingskidsintheneighborhood grewupwithandthekidsfromMinnewashta
whoridedownthestreetaspartoftheirbikeclubhavewillalsobelost.  Strawberry Lanewill
haveacompletely different feelandbelieves theCityneeds toexplorealessinvasive property
right.  Shestated thatshewouldliketokeeptheroadedgeasitisandnotedthatshewastold
bytheCityEngineer thatitwasadefinite possibility andautilityeasement wouldworkwitha
temporary license toallowforbigequipment thatneeds tobeontheproperty toinstall someof
theutilities.    

CarrieCochran, 5915Strawberry Lane, stated thattheyhave livedtherealmost34 yearsand
actually didmovetheirhousebecause theyhadsomuch water intheirbasement whentheybuilt
Strawberry Court.  Shestated thattheyrebuiltandaspartofthathadtogetaninventory ofall
thetreesontheproperty andtheyweretoldhowmanytreestheycould takeanddetailsabout
theirdimensions.  Shestated thatnowitappears asthough theCitywants toclearcutStrawberry
Laneafterthey, intheirsituation,  hadtogothrough theexpense ofnaming everysingle treeand
notedthattherearestilltagsoneverysingle tree, toensure that theysaved thenumber oftrees
theyweresupposed to.  Sheaskedifthatsameprocess happens forroadconstruction.    

Cochran stated thatshedoesnotthinktheyneedasidewalk andnotedthatshehaswalked down
themiddleofthestreetalmostdaily.  Shehaswalked dogsonit, herkidshavewalked toschool
onitandithasnotbeenaproblem.  Shestated thatnoparents lettheirkidswalkdownStrawberry
Lanetotheelementary schoolandiftheydo, theirparents arewiththem.  Shestated thatshe
doesnotthinkitisahugeissuebecause almostallthekidsridethebusortheirparents drive
thembecause thisisanelementary school, notahighschool.   



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
JULY 26, 2021
Page 20of26

LoriSacchet, 6175Strawberry Lane, stated thatherhouse isprobably themost impacted with
almost nineteen feetofherfrontyardbeingtakenaway.  Shestated thatifthisgoes through, she
would lookout herwindow and willseepeople passing rightbyherwindow.  Shestated that
without sounding tooderogatory, condescending, orcritical, shedoesnotfeelthat truedue
diligence wasdonetothisproject.  Shestated thatshethinks itwasliterally handed overtoa
company.    

Sacchetstated thatCityEngineer Budde isaveryniceguybutfeelstheCityofShorewood turned
itoveranddidnotdoaproperstakeholder analysis.  Shestated thatshehasworked for
Honeywell andMedtronic andknowswhatduediligence means whenaproject istakenon.  She
explained thatshehadglobal responsibility inhercareerandthinks thatalltheneighbors can
honestly saythattheydonotfeel thattheir inputwaseverconsidered.  Shestated thatthey
individually calledontheCouncilmembers tomeet theminthefrontyards trying toexpress their
concerns about thelackofinsightandunderstanding thatthisprojecthasgoneforwardwithand
theimpact totheeastsidenot taking abalanced approach.  Shestated thatwhenshewalks in
otherneighborhoods, theonlyoneshehasseenwithaboulevard approach wasLakeLucyRoad
andthestripofextra ispureweedsandnoonecaresforit.  Shestatedthatthefactthatthiswas
evenconsidered fortheirneighborhood concerns herfromtheget-go, thatadesignofthat level
wasevenconsidered because theydonotliveontheChamps-Elysees.  Thisisnotthesameas
Smithtown RoadanditisnotShorewood OaksDrive.    

Sacchet stated thatshewould implore theCouncil tolookatamuchbroader scope.  Shestated
thatCouncilmember Siakel’sstatement aboutkeeping thingssimpleandonlydoing acquisition
onthreeproperties stillconcernsherthatthiswouldbethetypeofthinking thataccompanied this
project.  Shestated thatshejustpaid $6,000tohaveherdriveway redone andexplained thatifit
isalmost inconceivable thatathirdofthatcouldbetakenaway.  Shestated thattherearealotof
stakeholders sitting intheroomandnotedthatsheworked atMinnewashta Elementary School
andwalked thatstreeteveryday.    

There issomething about thisthattheresidents donotwanttoseelost.  Sacchet stated thatto
hearthattheapproach beingconsidered issocerebral andpragmatic concerns herwhenthe
properanalysis has notbeenconducted.  Shestated thattheCityshouldgotothepeople, do
surveys, dodiscussions, gettheideasonpaper.  Shestated thatshehasnotseenaspreadsheet
withallthecosts laidout, drainage, treecutting, stump removal.  Shestated thatitisenoughto
makethemillandtherehasnotbeenacost/benefit analysisataseriously deeplevel thatshows
thealternative pricingofthedifferent scenarios really looklike.    

Sacchet stated thatCouncilmember Gorham’scomments andquestions really resonated with
her.   Shestated thatshedoesnotthinkthatthelevelofscrutiny onthisprojecthasbeensufficient
fortheCouncil tobeabletomakeaninformed decision.  Shestated thatshepaysalotoftaxes
intheCityandsheexpects morefromtheCity.  Shestatedtheneighbors implore theCouncil to
reallyslowdownwiththisprojectandtakealltheirinput intoconsideration.    

MayorLabadie thanked theresidents forcoming tothemeeting andvoicing theirconcerns.  She
stated thatCityEngineer Buddewaslooking fortwodecisions andwhile theCouncil hascometo
anagreement onthefirstitem - atrailversusasidewalk, shewouldliketheir input.  Shestated
thatsheisleaning towards continuing thatitembutwould liketohearfromCouncil first.    

Councilmember Johnson stated thathethought to understand someofthecost impacts, City
Engineer Buddewouldneedguidance fromtheCouncil astowhether theywanttoconsider the



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
JULY 26, 2021
Page 21of26

additional right-of-wayacquisition.  CityEngineer Buddestated thathefeltthathehadlaiditout
already tonight thattheadditional right-of-waycostswereabout $45,000ataminimum basedon
landvalue.  

Councilmember Johnson askedifthesatellite images where theconstruction limitsaredenoted
shouldbetakenliterally.  CityEngineer Buddestated thattheyshouldnotbetaken literally
because theyaresomewhat ofamoving targetuntil theytrulygettoabout80to90% design.  He
stated thatwhattheyrepresent nowistaking theroadway andgrading itdown, tyingitintotheir
yardsandthenadding fivefeetasaprecaution.  Hestatedthattheywilldotheirbesttotryto
honethoseinasthedesign advances.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatshefeelsabitdisturbed bythecharacterization thattheCity
istryingnottobeforthright.  Shestated thattheydohavetheinformation andtherehasnotbeen
anattempt totrytonotconvey information topeople.  Sheunderstands thatpeoplemaynotfeel
asthough theyhavegottenalltheinformation theywantbut explained thattherewasnota
deliberate attempt onthepartoftheCitytoobfuscate thesituation.    

Callies stated thatthereisabitofachicken andeggsituation because, until thereisafinalplan,  
youcannot reallysayhowmanytreeswillberemoved andwhatwillhappen witheachparticular
property ordetailsoncompensation.  Shestated thatshethinksthepurpose ofthismeeting isto
providesomedirection shebelieves therehavebeenchanges asaresultoftheresident
comments uptothispoint.  Sheaskedabout thecurrentwidthoftheroadway.   

CityEngineer Buddestated that itisabout22 feetfromedgetoedgeandtheproposal forthe
outermostedgefrombackofcurbisjustunder28feet.  Hestated thattheplansrightnowwould
addaboutsixfeetofroadway widthandanother sixfeetofsidewalk.    

Councilmember Calliesaskedabout thereference to50feetwidth. CityEngineer Budde
explained that50feetistheright-of-waywidth inalotofareasandnotthatitisideallywhatthe
Citywould liketohavetoconstructaroadway because itistheCity’sstandard.    

Councilmember Gorham stated thathewould liketoknowmoreaboutwiderwidthroadways
making itfasterandlesssafe.  Hesaidhewants tounderstand waystodoamorebalanced
approached andnotedthathefeelsthatCityEngineer Buddehasprovided averybinary, over- 
simplified decision.  HestatedthathedoesnotfeelliketheCityhasdoneenough exploration of
thealternatives.  Hestated thatitfeels likethereareblinders onwhen itcomestoseeingtheCity
standards forwidthsandhewould liketobeabletosaythateveryotherwidthhasbeenexplored
andallalignment options andhavethosepresented aswaysitcanbedone.  Henotedthathe
thinks theCitycanbemorecreative infindingasolution.  Hestated thatpartoftheanxietyofthis
whole thing, forhim, ishaving threedaystolookatitandknowing thatadecision willneedtobe
made.  Hestated thathewould liketoseesomething morecollaborative, suchasanopenhouse
topresent thedesigns rather thanhavingthepressure ofpublicspeaking andmaking surethat
theygivetheirpointotherwise itcouldbelostandthevotecouldgothewrongway.  Hestated
thatthisdoesnotfeellikeagreat collaborative process withtheresidents.    

Councilmember Johnson stated thatheagrees withCouncilmember Gorham’spointssurrounding
creativity andnotedthatoneofthethingshewould liketoinvestigate areiftherearethings that
canbedonecreatively tooffset thecostofburying thepower lines.  Hestated thathehasheard
ofotherplaceswhere thishasbeendonethatthepowercompany canaddanominal feetothe
bill totrytooffset thosecosts.  Heexplained thathishopewouldbethat ifthepower linesare



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
JULY 26, 2021
Page 22of26

buried theremaybelessimpactonthetrees.  Hestated thatheisinfavorofinvestigating the
bottom diagram because thereneeds tobeamoreequitable solution.    

Councilmember Siakel stated thattheCouncil received e-mails todayfromresidents thatarein
supportofthetopoption withthesix-footsidewalk.  Councilmember Johnson statedthathe
believes thatistrue, butthinks itwasnorthofthetrail.    

Councilmember Siakelstatedthatshethinksstaffneedssomedirection anddoesnotunderstand
thepointsbeingmadebyCouncilmembers Gorham andJohnson aboutbeingcreative.  She
stated thatshedoesnotseethisastheCitymakingadecision thattheyaregoingtocramdown
people’sthroats.  Shestated thatitisimpossible tosithereandsaythattreeswillnotbelost.   
Shestated thatshewould loveforthepower linestobeburiedbutdoingitiscostprohibitive
unless theresidents arewilling toassume theassessment.  Shestated thattheytriedtodothat
onSmithtown Roadanditwasunbelievably expensive soeventhough itsounds greatshecannot
support it.   

MayorLabadie stated thatsheagrees withCouncilmember Gorham thattheCityshould
investigate moreoptions butnotevery singleonecanbeinvestigated because theywouldend
upatthedrawingboard fortwentyyears.  ShestatedthattheCityhashadmanyroadprojects
where therehavebeenresidents whodonotwantitandnotedthatthisisalargegroupthatdoes
notlikewhat isinfrontofthem, which concerns her.  Shestated thatsheisamomandher ‘mom
intuition’ sometimes guidesher.  Whenshebecame mayor, itisalmost liketheCitybecame one
ofherkidsandrightnow, sheisnotprepared togoforward witheitheroption eventhoughshe
knows thatisnotwhatCityEngineer Buddewants tohear.    

MayorLabadie stated that theCitywillhaveonecrackatthis, anditneeds tobedoneright.  She
stated thattherehasbeenconcern aboutburyingpower linesandifthemajority oftheCityhas
overhead power lines, sheaskedhowtheycanjustifyburying itinoneneighborhood andnot
another.  Shestated thatwouldmeanmoving forward andburying power linesforallthefuture
projects whichwouldbankrupt theCity.  Shestated thatunless there is100% buy-infromthe
residents, shedoesnotthinkexploring thisoption isagooduseofstaff’stime.  Shestated that
theCouncil istrying itsbesttolistenbuttheyarenotengineers orexpert treepeopleandfeelsas
representatives forthecitizens shethinks thattheyneedtodirectstafftofindonemorecreative
alternative.     

Councilmember Callies askedwhattheCouncil’sgoalwouldbefortheotheralternative andfeels
staffneedssomedirection.   Sheaskedifthecreative effortswere supposed togotowards, for
example,  treepreservation, costsavings, orsomething likehaving everybody havethesame
amountoftheir frontyard takenaway.    

CityEngineer Buddestated thatheisintrigued bytheideaofadding insomecurvature sothere
couldbesomesafety improvements withthatapproach.  Hestated thattheoverwhelming things
hehasheardaresafetyandtrees.  Hestated thattheycanquantify safetywithtrafficengineers.   
Hestated thattheideaofcurvature totheroadwasnotsomething hethoughtofandsuspects
thatitwouldebbandflowtheproperty impactsandwillbegintheconversation alloveragain
aboutwhat isequitable, whichhedoesnotknowhowtoquantify.    

Councilmember Gorham stated thathewants tomakesurethatstreetwidth isexplored andcurbs
asitrelates todrainage, forexample, arecurbsneeded onbothsidesforthefulllengthofthe
roadway.  Hestatedthathewould liketoknowthesehavebeenlookedatandfortheCouncil to



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
JULY 26, 2021
Page 23of26

beabletodefend thedesigndecisions.  Hestated thathewould liketominimize taking treesand
totrytocapture asmuchoftheruralcharacter aspossible because hethinks thatcanbe
defended.  Hestated thathedoesnotthinkcapturing theruralcharacter hasbeenpartofthe
calculus thusfar.    

Councilmember Siakelstated thatshewould liketomakethepoint thatwhenSmithtown Road
wasreferenced, theywere referencing thesidewalk andnotthestreet.    

CityEngineer Buddestated thathethinkshehasaprettydecent grasponwhattheCouncil is
askinghimtodoandexplained thathewillspeak tostafftoconfirm withwhattheyhaveheardas
wellandhasenough togooffofinordertocomeback.  Heaskediftheoptionofasix-foot
sidewalk oraneight-foot trailwasstillonthetableasamatrixorshouldbemoveforward witha
six-foot sidewalk withanything moving forward.   MayorLabadie andCouncilmember Siakel
stated thatheshouldmoveforward withasix-footsidewalk option.    

Director ofPublicWorksBrownstated thatwhenhefirststarted working attheCity26yearsago,  
therewasaprocess whichwasfortheengineer topresentadesign tothepublicbysaying, “This
isourdesign.”  Thefeedback thatwasgivenwasthattheydidthedesignanddidnotevenask
thepeople theiropinion.  Hestated thattheyreversed theprocess andsaidlet’sget inputandwill
puttogether someoftheframework forsomething likeanopenhouse andhaveitveryloose, so
itisnotjustpresenting adesign topeople without taking inputoraddressing theirconcerns.  He
stated that thenthefrustration rosethattheCitywasnotgivinganyanswers, justliketonight, if
hedoesnotknowhowwidethesidewalk willbe, theengineer cannot figureoutwhere itwill touch
theground andimpact theproperties anddonotknowhowmuchright-of-wayisbeing impacted
orfigureoutcostorcalculate drainage.  Hestated thatthereisachicken andeggscenario where
theCitytries, within theprocess, toputtogether aframework thatallows feedback andnothave
everything locked insotheycanallowforchange.  Hestated thatheappreciates theircontinued
patience withthetimingofanswers astheyworkthrough someofthedetails thatchanged again
tonightwith thefeedback.    

Councilmember Siakelaskedforclarification ofwhatthenextstepwillbesonobody isconfused.   
MayorLabadie askedCityEngineer Budde howsoonhewouldbeabletogetinformation back
before theCouncil andwhether hefeltitshould bedoneataregularmeeting oratanOpen
House.  CityEngineer Buddestated thathewould prefer itataCouncil meeting sothere isclear
direction andnotedthatgetting theinformation outtopeoplesotheyhaveenough timetoabsorb
itwillbeveryworthwhile.  Hestated thathethinkshemaybeabletohavemore information for
theCouncil bytheirsecond meeting inAugust, butitisprobably more likely forthefirstmeeting
inSeptember.    

Mayor Labadie encouraged residents tocheck theCitywebsite fortheagenda anddetailsofthe
meeting.  Shethanked everyone forbeingrespectful thisevening astheygavetheir feedback.       

MayorLabadie recessed themeeting at10:19p.m. andreconvened at10:25p.m.  

B. Approve Plans and Specifications andAuthorize Advertisement forBids for
Covington Road Watermain Improvement

CityEngineer Budde explained thatthewatermain onCovington Roadhashadabreak inthe
recent pastanditwasfoundthatthepipewasintoughshape andshouldbereplaced.  Hestated
thatthehopeistogetthisoutforbidsandbeabletoconstruct thisproject thisfallbefore the



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
JULY 26, 2021
Page 24of26

wintermonths withthemillandoverlay happening most likelynextspring.  Hestated thatthis
project isnotintheCIPandismoreofamildemergency typesituation.  Theconstruction costs
areestimated tobearound $392,000withatotalproject costat $490,000including design and
construction.    

Johnson moved, Labadie seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 21-085, “AResolution
Approving Plans and Specifications and Authorize Advertisement ofBids for the
Covington Road Watermain Improvement Project.  City Project 21-07”  All infavor.  Motion
passed.   

C. Reject Bids forLiftStations 7and 10Rehabilitation Project

CityEngineer Buddenotedthatbidsforthisproject wereopened onJuly6, 2021, andcameback
about48percent higher thantheengineer’sestimate.  Hestated thatmanycontractors arevery
busyrightnowandCOVID thingsendupbeingaremnantonthesetypesofprojects, sostaff is
recommending rejecting thesebidsandthenre-bidtheproject during thewintermonths and
possibly addinathirdliftstationwithonethatisslated intheCity’sCIPfor2022.   

Councilmember Gorham statedthatheisabitworried because threebidscameinsoclose
together andaskedifhefelt theissuewasmostlymaterial costs.  PublicWorksDirector Brown
stated thathefeelsitisfifty-fiftyinthatmaterials costsareplayingaroleinthepricing, butalso
thefactthateveryone isalready busywithfallworkandduetothemarket conditions.  Hestated
thatthere isnothing urgent tothisproject, sohedoesnotthinkitwillhurttotrytogetthemost
favorable bidding condition later.    

Gorham moved, Johnson seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 21-086, “AResolution
Rejecting Bids for theLiftStations 7and 10Rehabilitation Project. City Project 20-12”  All
infavor.  Motion passed.   

9. GENERAL/NEW BUSINESS

A. Urban Farm Animal Ordinance Discussion

Planning Director Darling stated thatattheJune28, 2021CityCouncil meeting theCouncil
reviewed general information onhowothercitiesregulated farmanimals anddirected staff todraft
amendments totheordinance toallowforthefivechanges asdiscussed.  Staff recommends
forwarding thistothePlanning Commission toholdapublichearing onSeptember 7, 2021.  

Councilmember Callies askedforclarification thattheywillhavetopayaninitial fee, butnota
renewal fee.  Planning Director Darling stated thatwaswhattheCouncil haddirected.    

MayorLabadie askedabout regulation #2thattalksabout theanimalshelter needing tobelocated
closer totheanimalowner’shomethantoahomeonanabutting property.  Sheaskedwhatwould
happen toexisting permitholders andexisting shelters.  Planning Director Darling stated thatthat
wouldhavetobeaddressed withtheirrenewal.  

Councilmember Calliesstatedthatshethinks thereshouldbearenewal fee.  Councilmember
Gorham stated thathethinks theCouncil haddirected fortheretobenorenewal feewhenthey



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
JULY 26, 2021
Page 25of26

werethinking thepermitwouldberenewed annually andnowstaffisrecommending afive-year
termforthepermit.  Heasked howmuchworkitisforstaffandaskedwhat iscurrently charged.   

Planning Director Darling stated thattheCitycurrently charges $50whichcovers thecostofthe
inspection andabout $5.00towards thecostsofadministering thepermit.  Councilmember Callies
stated thatshethinksafeewillensure thattheperson whohastheanimals istaking itseriously.    
Councilmember Siakelaskedwhatshefeltthefeeshouldbe.  Councilmember Calliessuggested
thatitbethesameamount.     

Labadie moved, Johnson seconded, Directing staff tosend this item tothePlanning
Commission for thepublic hearing process toconsider anOrdinance Approving an
Amendment toShorewood City Code Chapter 705 (Farm and Other Animals).  

TheCouncil discussed waystohandle compliance fortheexisting permitholders.   

All infavor.  Motion passed.    

10. STAFF AND COUNCIL REPORTS

A. Administrator andStaff

1. Second Quarter 2021 General Fund Report

Finance Director Rigdon gaveabriefoverview oftheSecond Quarter2021General FundReport
andnotedthatbuildingpermits wereatabout125% ofthebudget throughJune.  Hestated the
Cityisontargetwiththeexpenditures.   

2. Second Quarter 2021 Investment Report

Finance DirectorRigdon statedthat thisisalsoaninformational itemandnoactionneeds tobe
taken.  Hegaveabriefoverview oftheSecond Quarter 2021Investment Reportandnotedthat
theCity isincompliance withitsdiversification requirements inthepolicy.  Henotedthat
segregation ofinvestments issimilar tothepriorperiod.    

Other

PublicWorksDirector Brownstated thatafewweeks agotheyhadanincident attheirsoutheast
areawaterplant located inSilverwood Park.  Therewasamechanical failureandsomeactions
ofsomeoftheyounger members oftheirdepartment resulted inthefloodingofthelower levelof
thefilterplant.  Theyhavegone through aninvestigation andconsulted withtheLeagueof
Minnesota Cities toreviewthesituation.  Hestated thatheisestimating thedamages tobe
between $14,000to $18,000.  Hestated thattheyhavemadesuretoprovide additional training
totheindividuals involved andarehopeful thatthethings theyhaveputinplacewillensure that
thistypeofthingwillnothappen again.    

Finance Director Rigdon notedthattheCity’sbondsalegoes finalonJuly28, 2021andfundswill
bereceived thesameday.    

CityEngineer Buddestated thattheGlen/Amlee/Manitou project isgoingverywellandon
schedule withcurbing beingpoured nextweek.  TheMillandOverlay project iscontinuing forward



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
JULY 26, 2021
Page 26of26

andabitbehindontheplanned schedule somewhat duetocoordination withCenterpoint Energy.   
Hegaveanoverview ontheSmithtown Pondproject related totheArmyCorpsofEngineer and
waystoreduce thepermitting process tothreemonths andishoping thatthiswillgettheproject
backonpace.   

Planning Director Darling statedthatMusicintheParkwasasuccess withabout250people in
attendance.  Shestatedstaffhasinvitedsomecontractors tobeginusingthenewpermit software
anditwillprobably beopentothepublicwithinafewweeks.   

CityAttorney Keanestated thattheCouncil waslaidbareforagreatdealofcriticism fromthe
publicsuggesting thatthereisanautocratic atmosphere ofsuppression offreespeech andanti- 
democratic policies inhowtheCityconducts itshearings andMatters fromtheFloor.  Hestated
thattheCityisnotunderanyobligation toholdpublic forumandnotedthatadecade agoitwas
theexception whenacommunity hadanopenforum.  Hestated thattheCity’sOpenForumis
veryopenandmoreopenthanmost.  Hestated thattherespect thatthisCouncil showsto
suspend itsroutine business toallowthepublic tospeakonanysubject iscommendable.  He
gave theexample oftheCitywherehelivesandexplained that theOpenForumisonahardclock
anditcouldbeinseconds notminutes.  Hestated thatduringZoomtime, theyjustturnedofftheir
window whentheir timewasupandinmoreconventional timestheyhaveanalarmthatgoesoff.   
Hestated thathedoesnotthinktheCouncil hasanything toapologize forintermsoftheopenness
andtheiracceptance ofpublicdialogue.    

B. Mayor and City Council

11. ADJOURN

Johnson moved, Gorham seconded, Adjourning theCity Council Regular Meeting of July
26, 2021, at10:54P.M.  All infavor.  Motion passed.  

ATTEST:             
Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, City Clerk



2B

MEETING TYPE
RegularMeetingCityofShorewood CouncilMeeting Item

Title / Subject: VerifiedClaims

MeetingDate:   August9, 2021
Preparedby: MichelleNguyen, SeniorAccountant

GregLerud, CityAdministrator
JoeRigdon, Finance Director

Attachments: Claimslists

PolicyConsideration:  
Shouldtheattached claimsagainst theCityofShorewood bepaid?  

Background:  
Claimsforcouncilauthorization.  

66944-66977 & ACH 434,041.89
TotalClaims $ 434,041.89

Wehavealsoincludedapayrollsummary forthepayrollperiodendingAugust1, 2021.  

FinancialorBudgetConsiderations:  
Theseexpenditures arereasonable andnecessary toprovideservicestoourresidentsandfundsare
budgetedandavailable forthesepurposes.  

Options:  
TheCityCouncilmayacceptthestaffrecommendation topaytheseclaimsormayrejectany
expenditure itdeemsnotinthebestinterestofthecity.  

Recommendation / ActionRequested:  
Staffrecommends approvaloftheclaimslistaspresented.  

NextStepsandTimelines:  
Checkswillbedistributed following approval.  



0.-'1#23'!. 

1?0& 1

@%.AB" CCCCDECFEGCGD# H#$2HCFHCGHGCGD

4567#89#:;82<=88, 

9 I,#DCD) 1 !%(#901J

DCDHCCHDCDCHCCCC# CECC# KCLMDNEOF4P:;# PI,#5IQ<:6R<I6: 

DCDHDSHODCDHCCCC# DSLDFCEST# CECC9 H65R<#2<) P2

DCDHDSHODCSHCCCC# GCSEMO# CECC$ P26H65R< 

DCDHDSHODGDHCCCC# DLCCSEFC# CECC$< 2P#48I625@#H#4567#:;P2< 

DCDHDSHODGGHCCCC# DLCCOESD# CECC954P# 48I625@#H#4567#:;P2< 

DCDHDSHODSDHCCCC# GLCNNEKO# CECC< R$+87<<#5I: 2PI4<#H#4567

DCDHDSHODNDHCCCC# DCKECF# CECC= 82U<2:#48R$<I:P658I

DCDHDNHODCDHCCCC# NLONMECM# CECC9 H65R<#2<) P2

DCDHDNHODGDHCCCC# OCTEGC# CECC$< 2P#48I625@#H#4567#:;P2< 

DCDHDNHODGGHCCCC# ODFEDD# CECC954P# 48I625@#H#4567#:;P2< 

DCDHDNHODSDHCCCC# MCKEOK# CECC< R$+87<<#5I: 2PI4<#H#4567

DCDHDNHODNDHCCCC# SCEFD# CECC= 82U<2:#48R$<I:P658I

DCDHDFHODCDHCCCC# FLCMCESF# CECC9 H65R<#2<) P2

DCDHDFHODGDHCCCC# MCOENN# CECC$< 2P#48I625@#H#4567#:;P2< 

DCDHDFHODGGHCCCC# NFMEDK# CECC954P# 48I625@#H#4567#:;P2< 

DCDHDFHODSDHCCCC# DLCDOEFM# CECC< R$+87<<#5I: 2PI4<#H#4567

DCDHDFHODNDHCCCC# OFEFC# CECC= 82U<2:#48R$<I:P658I

DCDHGOHODCDHCCCC# SLSFSEMM# CECC9 H65R<#2<) P2

DCDHGOHODGDHCCCC# GNSEKK# CECC$< 2P#48I625@#H#4567#:;P2< 

DCDHGOHODGGHCCCC# GNKEFM# CECC954P# 48I625@#H#4567#:;P2< 

DCDHGOHODSDHCCCC# MKDETS# CECC< R$+87<<#5I: 2PI4<#H#4567

DCDHGOHODNDHCCCC# DFENG# CECC= 82U<2:#48R$<I:P658I

DCDHSGHODCDHCCCC# DNLKMFEMO# CECC9 H65R<#2<) P2

DCDHSGHODCNHCCCC# OCTECF# CECC: 62<<6#$P)<2#$P7

DCDHSGHODGDHCCCC# DLGDSEGF# CECC$< 2P#48I625@#H#4567#:;P2< 

DCDHSGHODGGHCCCC# DLDNDEFF# CECC954P# 48I625@#H#4567#:;P2< 

DCDHSGHODSDHCCCC# GLKCFETF# CECC< R$+87<<#5I: 2PI4<#H#4567

DCDHSGHODNDHCCCC# TFGEDC# CECC= 82U<2:#48R$<I:P658I

DCDHSSHODCDHCCCC# GNKEDK# CECC9 H65R<#2<) P2

DCDHSSHODGDHCCCC# DTEGF# CECC$< 2P#48I625@#H#4567#:;P2< 

DCDHSSHODGGHCCCC# SDEDF# CECC954P# 48I625@#H#4567#:;P2< 

DCDHSSHODSDHCCCC# GFCEFN# CECC< R$+87<<#5I: 2PI4<#H#4567

DCDHSSHODNDHCCCC# GCEFT# CECC= 82U<2:#48R$<I:P658I

DCDHNGHODCDHCCCC# SLGSTEND# CECC9 H65R<#2<) P2

2#H#)*+#,- 0.-'1#23'!.#VCF*CG*GCGD#H#DD"CC#PRW$%? # D



DCDHNGHODCSHCCCC# DLMTGECC# CECC$ P26H65R< 

DCDHNGHODGDHCCCC# GOGETM# CECC$< 2P#48I625@#H#4567#:;P2< 

DCDHNGHODGGHCCCC# SKFECN# CECC954P# 48I625@#H#4567#:;P2< 

DCDHNGHODSDHCCCC# FGNESO# CECC< R$+87<<#5I: 2PI4<#H#4567

DCDHNGHODNDHCCCC# GNTEKF# CECC= 82U<2:#48R$<I:P658I

DCDHNSHODCDHCCCC# DLOOTEMC# CECC9 H65R<#2<) P2

DCDHNSHODGDHCCCC# DCFEKG# CECC$< 2P#48I625@#H#4567#:;P2< 

DCDHNSHODGGHCCCC# DCTECO# CECC954P# 48I625@#H#4567#:;P2< 

DCDHNSHODSDHCCCC# DMEMD# CECC< R$+87<<#5I: 2PI4<#H#4567

DCDHNSHODNDHCCCC# KSEOS# CECC= 82U<2:#48R$<I:P658I

6789:;<=>$ 6789:;<=> 01%*$2 #345

9 I,#GCD: B'! X''J#4'>>E#Y#<Z1.#41. ! 

GCDHCCHDCDCHCCCC# CECC# GLSMKEKM4P:;# PI,#5IQ<:6R<I6: 

GCDHCCHODCDHCCCC# DLOFKEKN# CECC9 H65R<#2<) P2

GCDHCCHODCSHCCCC# OKDECC# CECC$ P26H65R< 

GCDHCCHODGDHCCCC# DOMETD# CECC$< 2P#48I625@#H#4567#:;P2< 

GCDHCCHODGGHCCCC# DOFENG# CECC954P# 48I625@#H#4567#:;P2< 

GCDHCCHODSDHCCCC# GOETD# CECC< R$+87<<#5I: 2PI4<#H#4567

GCDHCCHODNDHCCCC# FFEMK# CECC= 82U<2:#48R$<I:P658I

8@96<69$? 8@96<6901%*$2 #345

9 I,#MCD=%. !#

MCDHCCHDCDCHCCCC# CECC# DDLTODEOO4P:;# PI,#5IQ<:6R<I6: 

MCDHCCHODCDHCCCC# FLFSTEGG# CECC9 H65R<#2<) P2

MCDHCCHODCNHCCCC# GCOENO# CECC= P6<2#$P)<2#$P7

MCDHCCHODGDHCCCC# MKFEGT# CECC$< 2P#48I625@#H#4567#:;P2< 

MCDHCCHODGGHCCCC# MSTEFS# CECC954P# 48I625@#H#4567#:;P2< 

MCDHCCHODSDHCCCC# DLSSMEKD# CECC< R$+87<<#5I: 2PI4<#H#4567

MCDHCCHODNDHCCCC# GOGEFN# CECC= 82U<2:#48R$<I:P658I

8A=:<==$:: 8A=:<== 01%*$2 #345

9 I,#MDD:% 1-.%!&#: X !#

MDDHCCHDCDCHCCCC# CECC# TLDCCESD4P:;# PI,#5IQ<:6R<I6: 

MDDHCCHODCDHCCCC# MLMDFETC# CECC9 H65R<#2<) P2

MDDHCCHODCNHCCCC# GCOENO# CECC:<=< 2#$P)<2#$P7

MDDHCCHODGDHCCCC# NDDEKT# CECC$< 2P#48I625@#H#4567#:;P2< 

MDDHCCHODGGHCCCC# OTCETD# CECC954P# 48I625@#H#4567#:;P2< 

MDDHCCHODSDHCCCC# DLCTDEKS# CECC< R$+87<<#5I: 2PI4<#H#4567

MDDHCCHODNDHCCCC# DFGEOO# CECC= 82U<2:#48R$<I:P658I

2#H#)*+#,- 0.-'1#23'!.#VCF*CG*GCGD#H#DD"CC#PRW$%? # G



A8:77<@:$ A8:77<@: 01%*$2 #345

9 I,#MGD2 A&A(-1?#

MGDHCCHDCDCHCCCC# CECC# NOGENM4P:;# PI,#5IQ<:6R<I6: 

MGDHCCHODCDHCCCC# STKEFO# CECC9 H65R<#2<) P2

MGDHCCHODGDHCCCC# GTEFS# CECC$< 2P#48I625@#H#4567#:;P2< 

MGDHCCHODGGHCCCC# SCEGM# CECC954P# 48I625@#H#4567#:;P2< 

MGDHCCHODSDHCCCC# FDEKT# CECC< R$+87<<#5I: 2PI4<#H#4567

MGDHCCHODNDHCCCC# GEFO# CECC= 82U<2:#48R$<I:P658I

9$;=?<; 901%*$2 #345

9 I,#MSD:.'!>#=%. !#

MSDHCCHDCDCHCCCC# CECC# GLDNFEDF4P:;# PI,#5IQ<:6R<I6: 

MSDHCCHODCDHCCCC# DLNKTETD# CECC9 H65R<#2<) P2

MSDHCCHODGDHCCCC# DDFEND# CECC$< 2P#48I625@#H#4567#:;P2< 

MSDHCCHODGGHCCCC# DGCEOF# CECC954P# 48I625@#H#4567#:;P2< 

MSDHCCHODSDHCCCC# GTTEMM# CECC< R$+87<<#5I: 2PI4<#H#4567

MSDHCCHODNDHCCCC# STEMG# CECC= 82U<2:#48R$<I:P658I

8:;><:>$? 8:;><:> 01%*$2 #345

9 I,#KCC$%&!'((# 4( %!-1?#901J

KCCHCCHDCDCHCCCC# TMLKGNEKS# CECC4P:;# PI,#5IQ<:6R<I6: 

KCCHCCHGDKCHCCCC# CECC# OOLOTCETT) 28::#$P728++#4+<P25I) 

KCCHCCHGDKDHCCCC# CECC# DCLCCCECC;< P+6;#5I: 2PI4<#$P7P@+< 

KCCHCCHGDKGHCCCC# CECC# MLOCDESC9<,< 2P+#=56;;8+,5I)#$P7P@+< 

KCCHCCHGDKSHCCCC# CECC# SLCSNECO: 6P6<#=56;;8+,5I)#$P7P@+< 

KCCHCCHGDKOHCCCC# CECC# DCLKSSEGC954P* R<,54P2<#6P\[#$P7P@+< 

KCCHCCHGDKNHCCCC# CECC# TLTMTEMT$< 2P#=56;;8+,5I)#$P7P@+< 

KCCHCCHGDKMHCCCC# CECC# NLKCCECC,< 9<22<,#48R$<I:P658I

KCCHCCHGDKKHCCCC# CECC# GLCTKEFS= 82U<2:#48R$<I:P658I

KCCHCCHGDFCHCCCC# CECC# FTKESF+ 59<#5I: 2PI4< 

KCCHCCHGDFDHCCCC# CECC# DLNGFECD, 5:P@5+567#5I: 2PI4< 

KCCHCCHGDFGHCCCC# CECC# NDSEDC I58I#,

KCCHCCHGDFSHCCCC# CECC# DLGCFETG;< P+6;#:PQ5I):#P448 I6

KCCHCCHGDFMHCCCC# CECC# DNCEGKQ8+ I6P27#Q5:58I

A986?;<6@$ A986?;<6@01%*$2 #345

B(/ )#2 #345 A@8=;:<=9$: A@8=;:<=9

2#H#)*+#,- 0.-'1#23'!.#VCF*CG*GCGD#H#DD"CC#PRW$%? # S



8852%& 3?<@
45062& !- 4789-#!55:-;$ 3-= %'5! 

0%123 % 

A?&87"((((, B()B+(+,-.-#C.().(+.+(+, 

01-$ 0+$,##+%&.-2$) 3$4$)$

5!",+> DE4/F-/G-4H G4I;- J-.- GIHG- K FE47 89-EL2 %8 "-,> 4M-F%?<@ '"-N!2

212 C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,- 5%-K2 J,OB,(()*(+*+(+, P((.((.+,)+.((((# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,- 5%-K2

47 89-N5&?@"- J,OB,( 

5!",() QA>GR-=IEN> 47 89-E L2 %8 "-+> 4M-F%?<@ '"-N!2

C.().(+.+(+,# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-ME>.A>GR-= IEN>-+ PSBT+()*(+*+(+, P((.((.+,)O.((((# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-ME>.A>GR-= IEN> 

47 89-N5&?@"-+ PSBT+ 

5!" JFDN#E-.-DFKFC>;- U*M47 89-EL2 %8 "-O> 4M-F%?<@ '"-N!2

C.().(+.+(+,# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-DI4>-F06@53  -# 5!&$5%- QVOQTBQ,()*(+*+(+, P((.((.+,PQ.((((# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-DI4>-F06@53  -# 5!&$5% 

C.().(+.+(+,# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-DI4>-F06@53 !-# 5!&$5%- QVOQTBQ,()*(+*+(+, P((.((.+,PQ.((((# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-DI4>-F06@53 !-# 5!&$5% 
C.().(+.+(+,# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-/ '$8?! -F06@53  -# 5!&$5%-, V(,PB,T()*(+*+(+, P((.((.+,PQ.((((# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-/ '$8?! -F06@53  -# 5!&$5% 

C.().(+.+(+,# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-/ '$8?! -F06@53 !-# 5!&$5%-, V(,PB,T()*(+*+(+, P((.((.+,PQ.((((# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-/ '$8?! -F06@53 !-# 5!&$5% 
C.().(+.+(+,# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-D ' !?@-I%850 -N?W- SVQ(,BO(()*(+*+(+, P((.((.+,P+.((((# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-D ' !?@-I%850 -N?W

47 89-N5&?@"-, PV,OQBJ( 

5!",, SJDIKF; INX-EF4 CINX-; IDF-IGE C>G4F-4H/#>GX47 89-EL2 %8 "-Q> 4M-F%?<@ '"-D?@

212 C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-=$ 5%.>Y J(B+P()*(+*+(+, P((.((.+,)S.((((# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-=$ 5%.>Y

47 89-N5&?@"-, J(B+P

5!"+ I4/>-CFNICF/ FGN-NC EN.O(+,O,.QJP47 89-EL2 %8 "-J> 4M-F%?<@ '"-N!2

C.().(+.+(+,# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-K : !! '-4506.I4/>.D@?&- OV(PJB((()*(+*+(+, P((.((.+,PS.((((# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-K : !! '-4506.I4/>.D@?& 

47 89-N5&?@"- OV(PJB(( 

5!" S)SR>GE>E-4INX-; IDF-IGE C>G4F-4H/#>GX47 89-EL2 %8 "-S> 4M-F%?<@ '"-N!2

212 C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-;5%1-N !0-K$ @$&3- P+(BSQ()*(+*+(+, P((.((.+,),.((((# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-;5%1-N !0-K$ @$&3

212 C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-E75!&- N !0-K$ @$&3-)( PBOP()*(+*+(+, P((.((.+,),.((((# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-E75!&- N !0-K$ @$&3

47 89-N5&?@"-, VJ+)B(, 

45062& !- 47 89-#!55:-;$ 3-= %'5!-Z()*(+*+(+,-.-,+"((-#/\[#? 1 -, 



01-$ 0+$,##+%&.-2$) 3$4$)$

5!",,/ IGGFEHN>- KF#>CN/FGN--HD-CF=FG F47 89-EL2 %8 "-P> 4M-F%?<@ '"-N!2

C.().(+.+(+,# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-E&?& -I%850 -N?W- OV(OJB(Q()*(+*+(+, P((.((.+,PO.((((# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-E&?& -I%850 -N?W

47 89-N5&?@"- OV(OJB(Q

5!" P/ IGGFEHN>-; IDF47 89-EL2 %8 "-)> 4M-F%?<@ '"-N!2

212 C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-;$: -I%2!?%8 -)), BO)()*(+*+(+, P((.((.+,)(.((((# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-;$: -I%2!?%8

47 89-N5&?@"-)), BO) 

5!",( T,/ ECE./G-KFDFCCFK- 4H/#-#;> G-QJP47 89-EL2 %8 "-T> 4M-F%?<@ '"-N!2

C.().(+.+(+,# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-K : !! '-4506./ECE.#! -+ VQPJB((()*(+*+(+, P((.((.+,PS.((((# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-K : !! '-4506./ECE.#!  
C.().(+.+(+,# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-K : !! '-4506./ECE.C5&7QJP-, J(B((()*(+*+(+, P((.((.+,PS.((((# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-K : !! '-4506./ECE.C5&7QJP

47 89-N5&?@"-+ VS+JB(( 

5!",( G4#FCE-\\ CH IDF-IGE C>G4F47 89-EL2 %8 "-,(> 4M-F%?<@ '"-N!2

212 C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-#FC>-;$: -, SB((()*(+*+(+, P((.((.+,)(.((((# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-#FC>-;$:  

47 89-N5&?@"-, SB(( 

5!" SSJH# N A>GR47 89-EL2 %8 "-,,> 4M-F%?<@ '"-N!2

C.().(+.+(+,# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-ME>.H#N A>GR- TO+B((()*(+*+(+, P((.((.+,)O.((((# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-ME>.H#N A>GR

47 89-N5&?@"- TO+B(( 

5!" T# FC> 47 89-EL2 %8 "-,+> 4M-F%?<@ '"-N!2

C.().(+.+(+,# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-/G.#FC>-K '28&$5%- QVS+)B)(()*(+*+(+, P((.((.+,PJ.((((# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-/G.#FC>-K '28&$5% 
C.().(+.+(+,# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-/G-#FC>-A % :$&-F06@53 !- JVOQ( B)T()*(+*+(+, P((.((.+,PJ.((((# C-A?&87-((((,B()B+(+,-/G-#FC>-A % :$&-F06@53 ! 

47 89-N5&?@"- TVTSTBST

N5&?@-:5!-47 89-C2%"- Q(V,OSBT, 

N5&?@-5:-G20< !- 5:-47 89

45062& !- 47 89-#!55:-;$ 3-= %'5!-Z()*(+*+(+,-.-,+"((-#/\[#? 1 -+ 



@::74%& A5A>B
67284& !. 69 :;.#!77<.=$ 5.? %'7! 

2%345 % 

0"+-#1

CA&:9"((((, D()D,(,-./.66/()/(E/,(,- 

01-$ 0+$,##+%&.-2$) 3$4$)$

7!"-( F@G?@H6IG. J1@KJHK. LM= NJMHL69 :;. LO4 %: ".- @6P.I%A>B '".N!4

JH?,F+)Q( R7%$:A.1$%7B&A*6SF).678$ !. 0FD((()*( E*,(,--(-/-E/+,,-/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB". 0FD(( 

7!"--, @1ITJ6@H.= IK@=.# C=JLPJHK.. 6MT#MT@NJMH69 :;. LO4 %: "., @6P.I%A>B '".UAB

EQ)-,(,-. L/-S.67'$<$:A&$7%. 0V((+D((()*( E*,(,--(-/-0/++((/(((( 

E)Q0,(,-. L/-S.U7B$7.J%& !% &.LW:. 0,-DEF()*( E*,(,--(-/-0/++((/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB". 0V0,FDEF

7!")- Q@T6# MJHN.= @CL.MU.IGIH.#T@JTJI69 :;. LO4 %: ".0@6P. I%A>B '".UAB

QSEG! 43.N 3/UA 9$%3.)) D((()*( E*,(,--(-/0,/++((/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB".)) D(( 

7!"-- ESGMH. C@HJ@69 :;. LO4 %: ".+ @6P.I%A>B '".UAB

@43/--/,(,- LA< &5.6A28/ G7%X&.YA$ Y9A&.574.K7&. 0((D((()*( E*,(,--(-/F0/+,+)/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB". 0((D(( 

7!" SQQCM= NMH.Z.1IHRV. JH6D69 :;. LO4 %: ".F@6P. I%A>B '".N!4

Q00E, C$!:9.CB4<<.L&/ B$&5.J28!W2&.- 0VEQQD((()*( E*,(,-+-+/((/+0(0/(((( 

Q0+Q0K % !AB.I%3$%  !$%3. EV+,,D((()*( E*,(,--(-/0-/+0(0/(((( 
Q0+Q+ 1$BB.Z.MW !BA5.+) V)0(DF(()*( E*,(,-+-0/((/+0(0/(((( 
Q0+QF# AW 2 %&.L&!$8$%3.) QSD((()*( E*,(,-+(+/((/+S,(/(((Q

Q0+QSC W !B5.G!$W .Y &BA%'. S)D((()*( E*,(,-S0-/((/+0(0/(((( 
Q0+QQ69!$ 2A A; .C7A&.= A%'$%3.-( VSFFD((()*( E*,(,-+(,/((/+S)(/(((( 
Q0+)067W$% 3&7%T7A'.YA& !2A$%.J28!7W 2 %& E))D((()*( E*,(,-S(-/((/+0(0/(((( 

Q0+)FKJL/ B$&$ F(D((()*( E*,(,-S(-/((/++((/(((( 
Q0+)FKJL/ B$&$ QF(D((()*( E*,(,-S--/((/++((/(((( 

Q0+)FKJL/ B$&$ V,-FD((()*( E*,(,-S0-/((/++((/(((( 
Q0+)SKB %.T'/1A%$&74.=%/@2B  .T'.L&.++ VS)FDF(()*( E*,(,-+(Q/((/+0(0/(((( 
Q0+)QK!A%&.L&!  &.G!A$%A3 .- Q,D((()*( E*,(,-S0-/((/+0(0/(((( 

@#/67284& !. 69 :;.#!77<.=$ 5.? %'7!.\[()*(+*,(,-./..0"+-.#1\\# A3 .- 



01-$ 0+$,##+%&.-2$) 3$4$)$

Q0+E- P7\]A!' 7$%&.T7A'. B$&5.J28!7W 2 %& V0F)D((()*( E*,(,-S0-/((/+0(0/(((( 
Q0+E,=$<&. L&A&$7%.-(.T 9A>$B$&A&$7%. SSSD((()*( E*,(,-S--/((/+ 0(0/(((( 
Q0+E+=$<&. L&A&$7%.Q.T9A>$B$&A&$7%/FS((.Y77' T7A'.- V,F,D((()*( E*,(,-S--/((/+ 0(0/(((( 

Q0+EF1A! 5.=A; .M4&B &. 0V-F0D((()*( E*,(,-S0-/((/+0(0/(((( 
Q0+ES174%'.= 7:A&$7%.Z.U!A2 \]7!;.) SD((()*( E*,(,-+(+/((/+S,(/(((( 

Q0+EQ1L+. @'2$%$ A&$7%.- V)-+D((()*( E*,(,-S0-/((/+0(0/(((( 
Q0F(SL9A'5.J BA%'.C!$'3 .U7!: 2A$%.- V+0(D((()*( E*,(,-S--/((/+ 0(0/(((( 
Q0F(QL2$&9&7\]%.#7%'. QVS)0DF(()*( E*,(,-S0-/((/+0(0/(((( 

Q0F() L74&9.=A; .1$%% &7%;A.J28!7W . 0+(D((()*( E*,(,--(-/((/0+-+/(((( 
Q0F(EL&7''A!'.6728A%$ V00,D((()*( E*,(,--(-/((/0+-+/(((( 

Q0F-( L&!A\]> !!5.=%.L&.T :7% Z.N!B. 0SV,+EDF(()*( E*,(,-+(E/((/+0(0/(((( 
Q0F-- Y$B& 5.=A% .+ VE-(D((()*( E*,(,-+(+/((/+0(0/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB".- E0V-S0D(( 

7!" C^((+,,6AB@& BA%&$:.K!748.J%:D69 :;.LO4 %: ".S@6P. I%A>B '".UAB

T <4%'.69 :;.,+ D,)()*(+*,(,- S(-/((/,(-(/(((( 
T <4%'.69 :;.,) D00()*(+*,(,- S--/((/,(-(/(((( 

T <4%'.69 :;.-, D-+()*(+*,(,- S0-/((/,(-(/(((( 
T <4%'.69 :;.-, D-+()*(+*,(,- S,-/((/,(-(/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB". QSD)E

7!"- 0Q6IHN T_.=JHR69 :;. LO4 %: ".Q@6P. I%A>B '".N!4

EF,+Q(,,E+` EF,/+Q(/,,E+/#Y. SFDEE()*( E*,(,--(-/0,/+0,-/(((( 

EF,+Q(S0+(` EF,/+Q+/S0+(/6P.-,( D+,()*( E*,(,--(-/-E/+0,-/(((( 
EF,+Q(Q)-E` EF,/+Q(/Q)-E/LL66.- 0(DE)()*( E*,(,-,(-/((/+0,-/(((( H \].=$%  

69 :;.N7&AB". 0-QD0E

7!"- S( 6 LNM1. TIUTJKIT@NJMH. JH669 :;. LO4 %: ".) @6P.I%A>B '".UAB

SFQF1A$%&. 7%.U!  a !.Z.T <!$3 !A&7!. 0,0D((()*( E*,(,-,(-/((/+,,0/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB". 0,0D(( 

7!")+ S@=J6I.1@TJI. G@T= JHK69 :;. LO4 %: ".E@6P. I%A>B '".N!4

1 &!76&!/()*,- LC.-, DEE()*( E*,(,--(-/-)/+,+F/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB".-, DEE

7!")(+ G@?JG.GTMYH. @LLM6J@NILV. JH6D69 :;. LO4 %: ".-( @6P.I%A>B '".UAB

F-(S,(,- @.C7%'.U$%A%: .LW:.,- VF((D((()*( E*,(,-+(+/((/+Q0(/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB".,- VF((D(( 

@#/67284& !. 69 :;.#!77<.=$ 5.? %'7!.\[()*(+*,(,-./..0"+-.#1\\# A3 ., 



01-$ 0+$,##+%&.-2$) 3$4$)$

7!" C^((+,0R!$ Z.R %% &9.G7\] BB69 :;.LO4 %: ".-- @6P.I%A>B '".UAB

T <4%'.69 :;.,, DF+()*(+*,(,- S(-/((/,(-(/(((( 
T <4%'.69 :;., SD0(()*(+*,(,- S--/((/,(-(/(((( 
T <4%'.69 :;.-- D,Q()*(+*,(,- S0-/((/,(-(/(((( 

T <4%'.69 :;.-- D,Q()*(+*,(,- S,-/((/,(-(/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB". Q-D0) 

7!"- SQI61.# C=JLPITL. JH669 :;. LO4 %: ".-, @6P.I%A>B '".N!4

FSS, M!'D.H7D.FQE.) 0D0(()*( E*,(,--(-/-0/+0F-/(((( 
FSS0# P.,(+(.6728! 9 % W .+- DSF()*( E*,(,--(-/-)/+0F-/(((( 

F)(F# P.,(+(.6728! 9 % W ., SDEE()*( E*,(,--(-/-)/+0F-/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB".- F-DE+ 

7!"-) SUITK LMH..Y@NITYMTRLV.== 6D.H7D,F-) 69 :;.LO4 %: ".-0@6P. I%A>B '".UAB

Q,,0FYA& !. 1 & ! 83!A' . QV(((D((()*( E*,(,-S(-/((/+S+(/(((( 
QFQ)0YA& !. 1 & ! 4!:9A 0)D)0()*( E*,(,-S(-/((/+,SF/(((( 

Q)EF, YA& !.1 & ! 4!:9A 0V++0DS)()*( E*,(,-S(-/((/+,SF/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB".-( VF),DF- 

7!"-- QFKIHIT@=. TI#@JT.LIT?J6I69 :;. LO4 %: ".-+ @6P.I%A>B '".UAB

QF(S) UB7A&. QED)+()*( E*,(,-S(-/((/+,,-/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB". QED)+ 

7!" QFQKMH_ I@.PM1ILV. JH669 :;. LO4 %: ".-F@6P. I%A>B '".UAB

QS)(J BA%'?\]T' I 7\].T <4%'./.,QS)(.J BA%'.?$ \]. T7A'., SV,S0DF(()*( E*,(,-))(/((/,,((/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB"., SV,S0DF( 

7!",(( KM#PIT.LN@NI. MHI.6@== 69 :;.LO4 %: ".-S@6P. I%A>B '".N!4

Q(Q0S17%& 9B5.T %&AB.- QQD0(()*( E*,(,-S(-/((/++((/(((( 

Q(Q0S17%& 9B5.T %&AB.- QQD0(()*( E*,(,-S--/((/++((/(((( 
Q(Q0S17%& 9B5.T %&AB.- QQD0(()*( E*,(,-S0-/((/++((/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB". F0-DE( 

7!" C^((+,( 1$; .Z.L4 A%.PB2 ! 69 :;.LO4 %: ".-Q@6P. I%A>B '".UAB

T <4%'.69 :;. 0D))()*(+*,(,- S(-/((/,(-(/(((( 

T <4%'.69 :;.+ DF,()*(+*,(,- S--/((/,(-(/(((( 
T <4%'.69 :;.- DE+()*(+*,(,- S0-/((/,(-(/(((( 
T <4%'.69 :;.- DE+()*(+*,(,- S,-/((/,(-(/(((( 

@#/67284& !. 69 :;.#!77<.=$ 5.? %'7!.\[()*(+*,(,-./..0"+-.#1\\# A3 .0



01-$ 0+$,##+%&.-2$) 3$4$)$

69 :;.N7&AB".-, D,) 

7!") ESP ICL6P. LIT?J6IL69 :;. LO4 %: ".-) @6P.I%A>B '".N!4

E(Q)- L6I6./..1A& S,DSS()*( E*,(,-,(-/((/++((/(((( 

E00S+ 6$&5.PABB./.1A& D-E()*( E*,(,--(-/-E/++((/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB".,+ 0D)F

7!",, FJHNITH@NJMH@=.. JHLNJN NI.MU.1 HJ6J#@=.6=ITRL69 :;. LO4 %: ".-E@6P. I%A>B '".UAB

N\]$BAK!74&,(,-/,(,,. 12> ! 9$8.<7!.N\]$BA.K!74&.-- FD((()*( E*,(,-,(-/((/++00/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB".-- FD(( 

7!"-- EQJYMTb69 :;. LO4 %: ".,( @6P.I%A>B '".UAB

EFS,)# A52 %&.#! 7: 3.LW:. F((D((()*( E*,(,--(-/-)/++((/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB". F((D(( 

7!" C^((+,- 1BA%$ .Z..GAW$'.`7A 69 :;.LO4 %: ".,- @6P.I%A>B '".UAB

T <4%'.69 :;.+ SD,-()*(+*,(,- S(-/((/,(-(/(((( 

T <4%'.69 :;. F0DE(()*(+*,(,- S--/((/,(-(/(((( 
T <4%'.69 :;., 0D--()*(+*,(,- S0-/((/,(-(/(((( 

T <4%'.69 :;., 0D-(()*(+*,(,- S,-/((/,(-(/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB".-+ SD0, 

7!"--+ QRITCIT. U@1J=_. PM1IL69 :;. LO4 %: ".,, @6P.I%A>B '".UAB

F(FTA'$ 7%, I 7\].T <4%'./.,(F(F.TA'$ 7%.T7A'. QVF((D((()*( E*,(,-))(/((/,,((/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB". QVF((D(( 

7!"--)) RJG6TI@NI. LN GJM69 :;. LO4 %: ".,0@6P.I%A>B '".UAB

E((+ G7%X&.C43.1 .Y7!; 978.- ESD((()*( E*,(,--(-/F0/+,+)/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB".- ESD(( 

7!"-- E) RJ=J@H.6MHLNT 6NJMH69 :;. LO4 %: ".,+ @6P.I%A>B '".UAB

S0E(@B c)*,- I 7\].T <4%'./.,S0E(.@B cA%' !.=A% .-) V(((D((()*( E*,(,-))(/((/,,((/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB".-) V(((D(( 

7!"+), R N@R.TM6RV.==# 69 :;.LO4 %: ".,F@6P. I%A>B '".N!4

E-)0Q,(,- @..C7%' 3AB. EV(((D((()*( E*,(,-+(+/((/+Q0(/(((( 

@#/67284& !. 69 :;.#!77<.=$ 5.? %'7!.\[()*(+*,(,-./..0"+-.#1\\# A3 .+ 



01-$ 0+$,##+%&.-2$) 3$4$)$

69 :;.N7&AB". EV(((D(( 

7!"-( E(= IHH@T. PM1IL69 :;. LO4 %: ".,S@6P. I%A>B '".UAB

E)FC %&3!A YI 7\].T <4%'./.,+E)F.C %&3!A YA5.-( VQ,FD((()*( E*,(,-))(/((/,,((/(((( 

F(,FC %&3!A YI 7\].T <4%'./.,F(,F.C %&3!A YA5.- 0V(F(D((()*( E*,(,-))(/((/,,((/(((( 
FQS(Y77' %6B  ; I 7\].T <4%'./.FQS(.Y77' %.6B  ;.G!$W .- 0V(F(D((()*( E*,(,-))(/((/,,((/(((( 

F)+F6B4>? ABB 5I 7\].T <4%'./.F)+F.6B4>.?ABB 5.T7A'.- 0V(F(D((()*( E*,(,-))(/((/,,((/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB".+ EV)QFD(( 

7!")+- KTIKMT_.= IT G69 :;.LO4 %: ".,Q@6P. I%A>B '".UAB

F_! @\]A!' F._ A! @\]A!'., FD((()*( E*,(,--(-/--/+,+F/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB"., FD(( 

7!"+ SS16UM@. TIKJMH. J?./.6*M.1MHJ6@. PIHHILL_. 1MP@H69 :;. LO4 %: ".,) @6P.I%A>B '".UAB

H345 %,(,-/ 16UM@. G4 1$:9BB .H345 %.+ FD((()*( E*,(,--(-/-F/++00/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB".+ FD(( 

7!",), 1INTM. GJHJHK. 6= C69 :;.LO4 %: ".,E@6P. I%A>B '".UAB

S)QF+0/,(,- 1 &!7.G$%$%3.6A!' V(((D((()*( E*,(,-,(-/((/+,+Q/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB"., V(((D(( 

7!"+ F01INTM# M=JN@H. 6M H6J=.\[ L@6\\ 69 :;.LO4 %: ".0( @6P.I%A>B '".N!4

4B5/,(,-/L@617%& 9B5.L@6.T87!&. EV)+(DS(()*( E*,(,-S--/((/,(),/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB". EV)+(DS( 

7!"-( 0E1JG/ 6M HN_.6MM# 69 :;.LO4 %: ".0- @6P.I%A>B '".UAB

F,+0, U4 B. F)QD)(()*( E*,(,--(-/0,/+,-,/(((( 

F,+00U4 B., E0DE+()*( E*,(,--(-/0,/+,-,/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB".))- DQ+ 

7!" 0(S` JI.1MMTI69 :;. LO4 %: ".0, @6P.I%A>B '".N!4

@\]A!',(._ A! @\]A!'.-(( D((()*( E*,(,--(-/--/+,+F/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB".-(( D(( 

7!" 0-01J6PI== I.NP NP@M. HK IH69 :;.LO4 %: ".00@6P. I%A>B '".N!4

4B5/,(,- 1$BA3 ..T $2>4! 2 %&.-( ED0-()*( E*,(,--(-/-F/+00-/(((( 

@#/67284& !. 69 :;.#!77<.=$ 5.? %'7!.\[()*(+*,(,-./..0"+-.#1\\# A3 .F



01-$ 0+$,##+%&.-2$) 3$4$)$

69 :;.N7&AB".-( ED0- 

7!"-,((# JHI.# @TR.#TM#ITNJILV.== 6D69 :;.LO4 %: ".0+ @6P.I%A>B '".UAB

F(+(L2$&9&7\]%TI 7\].T <4%'./.,F(+(.L2$&9&7\]%.T7A'. QVF((D((()*( E*,(,-))(/((/,,((/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB". QVF((D(( 

7!",+( RIHHINP.# MNNLV..# @69 :;.LO4 %: ".0F@6P. I%A>B '".N!4

4B5/,(,-#! 7 4&$7%.17%&9B5.L !W$: VF((D((()*( E*,(,--(-/-S/+0(+/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB"., VF((D(( 

7!"-- FQRII=_. L6P Nd69 :;.LO4 %: ".0S@6P. I%A>B '".UAB

C$!' Q*,(,- C$!' 6BA 0FD((()*( E*,(,--(-/F0/+,+)/(((( 
Y7%' !<4BQ*,- Y7%' !<4B.YA& !.6BA 0D((()*( E*,(,--(-/F0/+,+)/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB"., Q)D(( 

7!" 0FFLPTIG/ H/KM.JH669 :;. LO4 %: ".0Q@6P. I%A>B '".UAB

Q- L9! '' '.LW:. F+DQF()*( E*,(,--(-/-0/++((/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB". F+DQF

7!"--)- L#=JN.TM6R. 1@H@KI1IHNV. JH6D69 :;. LO4 %: ".0) @6P.I%A>B '".N!4

QE0-, 6$&5.PABB. 6A!8 &.6B A%$%3. E,FD((()*( E*,(,--(-/-E/+,,0/(((( 
QE+-064 7'$AB.L !W$: /6P.C4$B'$%3.+ Q,D((()*( E*,(,--(-/-E/++((/(((( 
QE+-+ 64 7'$AB.L !W$: /#Y C4$B'$%3. 0F)D((()*( E*,(,--(-/0,/++((/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB".- VQFFD(( 

7!"-- SQ` MI.Z.R@NJI. LN@HM69 :;. LO4 %: ".0E@6P. I%A>B '".UAB

F,0FL2$& 9&7\]%,# A!&$AB.I 7\].T <4%'./.,F,0F.L2$&9&7\]%.T7A'. FV(E(D((()*( E*,(,-))(/((/,,((/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB". FV(E(D(( 

7!" 0SSCT 6I.LN@TR69 :;. LO4 %: ".+( @6P.I%A>B '".UAB

@\]A!',(._ A! @\]A!'.-(( D((()*( E*,(,--(-/--/+,+F/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB".-(( D(( 

7!"-- EENPI. KTIIHIT. C=@GI69 :;. LO4 %: ".+- @6P.I%A>B '".UAB

F)QEQP !>$:$' .# A!; V0F(D((()*( E*,(,--(-/F,/++((/(((( 
FE0EEP !>$:$' .# A!; F(D((()*( E*,(,--(-/F,/++((/(((( 

@#/67284& !. 69 :;.#!77<.=$ 5.? %'7!.\[()*(+*,(,-./..0"+-.#1\\# A3 .S



01-$ 0+$,##+%&.-2$) 3$4$)$

69 :;.N7&AB".- V)((D(( 

7!"-- E+ NPI.1:GMYI==. @KIH6_ V.JH6D69 :;. LO4 %: ".+, @6P.I%A>B '".UAB

0-),SCA:;3!74%'.69 :;/.1$ :9BB .H7!2A%.) FD((()*( E*,(,--(-/-0/++((/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB".) FD(( 

7!" SE+ NJ1IL@? IT.MUU.LJNI.LI6TIN@TJ@= V.JH6D69 :;. LO4 %: ".+0@6P. I%A>B '".N!4

1,SS,+ 674%:$B.1  &$%3. 0-ED-0()*( E*,(,--(-/-0/++((/(((( 
1,SS,+# A!;.1  &$%3.- F-D((()*( E*,(,--(-/F,/++((/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB".+ Q(D-0

7!" 0)+ NMN@=.# TJHNJHK. LIT?J6IL69 :;. LO4 %: ".++ @6P.I%A>B '".UAB

0-QE C.I%W B78 E,FD((()*( E*,(,--(-/-F/+0F-/(((( 

0-)QH \] B && ! E(D((()*( E*,(,--(-/-0/+0F-/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB".- V)-FD(( 

7!"-() 0 HJUJTLN. 6MT#MT@NJMH69 :;. LO4 %: ".+F@6P. I%A>B '".N!4

4B5/,(,- 7!2 S(,D)E()*( E*,(,--(-/0,/++((/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB". S(,D)E

7!" 0E- L.C@HR./. 6MT#MT@NI. NT LN.LIT?J6IL69 :;. LO4 %: ".+S@6P. I%A>B '".N!4

S-EE-,F@::&e-0-,0,HL/,(,-@.#A5$%3.@3 %&. Z.@:: 8&A%: .U  .) F(D((()*( E*,(,-+(+/((/+Q0(/((((# 4>B$:.LA< &5.Y S@

69 :;.N7&AB".) F(D(( 

7!" 0E,? @==I_/TJ6P.6MD.JH6D69 :;. LO4 %: ".+Q@6P. I%A>B '".UAB

ESE) YA& !2A$%.C! A;./.?$% .T$'3 .Z.67W$%3&7%.T7A'. SVS)+D,)()*( E*,(,-S(-/((/++((/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB". SVS)+D,) 

7!" 0E0? ILL6MV. JH669 :;. LO4 %: ".+) @6P.I%A>B '".UAB

Q69B7!$% . Q00DS)()*( E*,(,-S(-/((/+,,0/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB". Q00DS) 

7!"+() Y1.1 I==IT.Z.LMHL. JH669 :;. LO4 %: ".+E@6P. I%A>B '".N!4

S)(,+ T7A'.1A$%&.- V-F,D((()*( E*,(,--(-/0,/+,F(/(((( 

S)-Q( T7A'.1A$%&.- V-F,D((()*( E*,(,--(-/0,/+,F(/(((( 
S),0, T7A'.1A$%&.-() DQ,()*( E*,(,--(-/0,/+,F(/(((( 

@#/67284& !. 69 :;.#!77<.=$ 5.? %'7!.\[()*(+*,(,-./..0"+-.#1\\# A3 .Q



01-$ 0+$,##+%&.-2$) 3$4$)$

69 :;.N7&AB"., V+-,DQ, 

7!" EQ+ NPM1@L. Y@GI. YMMGY@TG69 :;. LO4 %: ".F( @6P.I%A>B '".N!4

4B5/,(,- 1$BA3 .,- 0D0S()*( E*,(,--(-/,+/+00-/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB".,- 0D0S

7!"+-- f6I=. IHITK_V.JH6D69 :;. LO4 %: ".F- @6P.I%A>B '".N!4

Q+---,+ QQ,+, F0.L2$&9&7\]%.T'., V)SQD(0()*( E*,(,-S(-/((/+0EF/((((,+, F0.L2$&9&7\]%.T' 
Q+--, 0()SFQ0F. 674%&! 5.6B4>.T'. FQ+DES()*( E*,(,-,(-/((/+0)(/(((( FQ0F.674%&! 5.6B4>.T' 
Q+-,-0SS+ FQFF. 674%&! 5.6B4>.T'.)+ DF)()*( E*,(,--(-/-E/+0)(/(((( FQFF.674%&! 5.6B4>.T' 

Q+-F+,(,S+ E0-.L9A'5.J AB%'.T7A'.+ FDQ0()*( E*,(,-S--/((/+ 0)(/((((+ E0-.L9A'5.J AB%'.T7A' 
Q+-F+,0EQ,)-, F.C74B' !. C!$'3 .G!$W .- VQ+-DQF()*( E*,(,-S(-/((/+0ES/((((,)-, F.C74B' !. C!$'3 .G!$W

Q+-F+0Q(FFQ((.674%& 5.T'.-E. S,DEQ()*( E*,(,--(-/0,/+0EE/(((( FQ((.674%& 5.T'.-E
Q+-F+0Q(FFQ((.674%& 5.T'.-E./. 39&.- S+DQS()*( E*,(,--(-/0,/+0EE/(((( FQ((.674%& 5.T'.-E./. 39& 

69 :;.N7&AB". FVF+-DQ) 

7!"-,(- L@T@P._ @HNJUM? J6P69 :;. LO4 %: ".F, @6P.I%A>B '".UAB

IW %&T <4%')*,-# A!;.#!73!A2.6A%: BB './.G2$&!5._A%&$<7W$:9. FD((()*( E*,(,--(-/F0/0+Q0/(((( 

69 :;.N7&AB". FD(( 

N7&AB.<7!.69 :;.T4%". 0E0VE(+ DE) 

N7&AB.7<.H42> !.7<.69 :; F, 

@#/67284& !. 69 :;.#!77<.=$ 5.? %'7!.\[()*(+*,(,-./..0"+-.#1\\# A3 .) 



CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

2CTitle/Subject: LMCITInsuranceRenewal
Meeting Date: August 9, 2021 MEETING
Prepared By:  GregLerud, CityAdministrator TYPE

REGULAR

Background:  TheCityCouncil isrequired bytheLeagueofMinnesota Cities Insurance Trust
LMCIT) toannually decide iftheywishtowaiveornotwaivethemonetary limitsonmunicipal tort

liability insurance established byMinnesota Statute 466.04.  Thecurrent statutory liability limits
are $500,000perclaimant and $1,500,000peroccurrence.  TheCityCouncil mustalsomakea
separate decision whetherornottopurchase additional liability insurance fromtheLMCIT.  

FinancialorBudgetConsiderations: Traditionally thecityhasnotwaived liability limits
andpurchased additional liability insurance.  Theproposed 2021budget isbeingprepared asif
thatpractice continues.  

Options: TheCityCouncil candothefollowing:  

1. Notwaive thestatutory tortlimitsandpurchase excess liability insurance coverage.  
2. Waive thestatutory limitsandnotpurchase excess liability insurance coverage.  
3. Waive thestatutory limitsandpurchase excess liability insurance coverage.  

RecommendedAction:  Staff recommends thattheCityCouncil passamotion tonotwaive
statutory tortlimitsandtopurchase excess liability insurance coverage.  

NextStepsandTimeline:  Staff isworking through theinsurance renewal process forthe
November 1renewaldate.  

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1





CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

2DTitle/Subject:  CallingforSpecialMeetingForRetreat
Meeting Date:  August9, 2021 MEETING
Prepared By:  GregLerud, CityAdministrator TYPE

REGULAR
Attachments:  Resolution

Background:  Theannual retreat will return in2020afterayearoffduetoCOVID.  The
dateisNovember 30andthemeeting willtakeplaceattheEmergency Operations
Center attheShorewood Public Safetybuilding.  

RecommendedAction:  Staff recommends thatthecouncil passtheattached
Resolution bysimple majority tocallforaspecial meeting tobeheldonNovember 30to
conduct thecouncil-staff retreat.  

NextStepsandTimeline:  Uponpassage staffwillprovide therequired notice.   

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



RESOLUTION2021-083
CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

ARESOLUTIONCALLINGFORSPECIALCITYCOUNCILMEETINGTOHOLDTHE
CITYCOUNCIL-STAFFRETREAT

BEITRESOLVED bytheShorewood City Council thataSpecial Meeting oftheCouncil
herebybeheldonNovember 30, 2021, beginning at9:00a.m. forthepurpose ofholding the
CityCouncil – staff retreat.  Themeeting willbeheldintheEmergency Operations Center room
attheShorewood PublicSafetybuilding.  

BEITFURTHER RESOLVED that theCityClerkishereby directed topublish andpost thelegal
notice forthemeeting.   

thAdopted this9 dayofAugust, 2021.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor

Attest:  

SandieThone, CityClerk



2E
MEETING

TYPE
Regular
MeetingCityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title/Subject:  AcceptAgreementforMaryLakeOutletProject,  
CityProject19-09

Meeting Date: Monday, August9, 2021
Prepared by:  Andrew Budde, CityEngineer
Reviewed by:  LarryBrown, Director ofPublic Works
Attachments:  Agreement, Resolution

Background:  TheCityofExcelsior provided aconditional municipal consent forthe
project thatrequired aholdharmless agreement withtheproperty ownerat23445
County Road19andamaintenance agreement withShorewood.  Themaintenance
agreement wasunintentionally omitted inrouting forsignatures andwasnotincluded in
theagenda iteminApril2021thatapproved alloftheotheragreements andeasements
forthisproject.     

FinancialConsiderations: None.    

Recommendation/ActionRequested: Staff recommends authorization toexecute final
maintenance agreement withtheCityofExcelsior.   

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



STORMSEWEROUTLETMAINTENANCEAGREEMENT

byandbetween
TheCityofShorewood Excelsior

relatingtoanoutletat23445CoRdNo19

RECITALS

WHEREAS, thisAgreementismadethisdayof ___________, 2021, byandbetweentheCityof

and

WHEREAS, thisAgreementconcernstherealpropertylocatedsouthandeastoftheparcelwithan
addressof 23445CoRdNo19, generallyknownasStuderPond, CityofExcelsior, Countyof
Hennepin, StateofMinnesota, legallydescribedintheattachedExhibitA ; and

WHEREAS, Excelsior adoptedaResolutionNo. 2020-58onSeptember21, 2020, whichprovided
MunicipalConsentbytheCityofExcelsiortotheCityofShorewoodtoconstructtheMaryLakeOutlet
ProjectaspresentedbytheCityofShorewood; and

WHEREAS, Excelsior conditionallyapprovedtheprojectproposedbyShorewoodsubjecttothe
watershedpermittingvariancerequirements relatingtofloodfreeboardandanincreasetothe100-year
highwaterelevationtoStuderPond; and

WHEREAS,  
requestforavariancefrom
increasesinfloodstageofadownstreamwaterbody. Namely, theShorewoodproposaltoincreasethe
100-yearhighwaterelevationtoStuderPondby0.07feetthroughtheconstructionofanewoutletto
MaryLaketoroutetoStuderPond; and

WHEREAS, Resolution2020-58providedthattheCityofShorewoodisresponsibleforthe
maintenanceoftheexistingstormseweroutletpipetoStuderPondfromWoodDuckCircle, aswell
as themaintenanceoftheStuderPondoutletcontrolstructureandpondoutletpipeinstalledaspartof
theMaryLakeOutletProject; ShorewoodCityProjectNo: 19-09..  

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, onthebasisofthepromisesandthemutualcovenantsandagreementssetforth
inthisAgreement, thepartiesagreeasfollows:  

1. TheCityofShorewoodmayconstructtheMaryLakeOutletProjectinaccordanceto
MunicipalConsentprovidedbyExcelsior, subjecttotheMCWDpermittingrequirements
setforthinMCWDPermit20-325.  

2. ThisAgreementinnowayalterstherequirementthatShorewood, theirsuccessors,  
heirs, andassigns, complywiththeShorewoodCityCode, laws, rules, regulations, or
otheragreementswiththeCityofShorewood.  

1
4820-9144-6241.1



3. Shorewood, theirheirs, successors, andassigns, agreetomaintaintheexistingstorm
seweroutletpipetoStuderPondfromWoodDuckCircle, aswellasmaintenanceof
theStuderPondoutletcontrolstructure andpondoutletpipeinstalledaspartofthe
MaryLakeOutletProject; ShorewoodCityProjectNo: 19-09.  

4. ThisAgreementshallrunwiththelandandshallberecordedagainstthetitletothe
SubjectProperty.  

5. ThisAgreementmayonlybeterminated, modified, oramendedwiththewritten
consentofbothparties.  

INWITNESSHEREOF, thepartieshaveexecutedthisAgreementasofthedayandyearfirstwritten
above.  

CITYOFEXCELSIOR

Mayor ToddR. Carlson

STATE OFMINNESOTA )   
ss .  

COUNTY OFHENNEPIN )  

Theforegoing instrument wasacknowledged before methis ___ dayof ____________, 2021, by
Mayor ToddR. Carlson.  

Notary Public

2
4820-9144-6241.1



CITYOFEXCELSIOR

CityManager KristiLuger

STATE OFMINNESOTA )   
ss .  

COUNTY OFHENNEPIN )  

Theforegoing instrument wasacknowledged before methis ____ dayof __________, 2021, by
CityManager Kristi Luger.  

Notary Public

3
4820-9144-6241.1



CITYOFSHOREWOOD

Mayor Jennifer Labadie

CityAdministrator, GregLerud

STATE OFMINNESOTA )   
ss .  

COUNTY OFHENNEPIN )  

Theforegoing instrument wasacknowledged before methis ___ dayof ____________, 2021, by
Mayor Jennifer Labadie andCityAdministrator Greg Lerud.  

Notary Public

4
4820-9144-6241.1



CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION21-084

ARESOLUTIONTOAPPROVEAGREEMENT
FORTHEMARYLAKEOUTLETPROJECT

CITYPROJECT19-09

WHEREAS, MaryLakethatdoesnothaveanatural drainage outletandstaffhas
reviewed various options toallowforagravity flowoutlet; and

WHEREAS, therecommended solution would increase thewater levelofStuder Pond
located intheCityofExcelsior andwould requireavariance fromtheMinnehaha Creek
Watershed District, and

WHEREAS, thecurrent Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) identifies improvements to
provide anoutlet fromalandlocked MaryLakein2020; and

WHEREAS, thecityhasawarded theconstruction contract toG.F. Jedlicki; and

WHEREAS, staffhassubmitted thenecessary permitting information totherequired
agencies andtheCityofExcelsior, andhasacquired conditional approvals byboth the
Minnehaha CreekWatershed District andtheCityofExcelsior; and

WHEREAS, theCityofExcelsior isrequiring aMaintenance Agreement stating that the
CityofShorewood willberesponsible forthemaintenance ofthestorm sewerpipefrom
Wood DuckCircle toStuder Pondandalsothenewly installed outlet control structure
andpipethatcontrols theoutletofwater fromStuder Pond.    

NOWTHEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED: bytheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood
hereby approve thefinalmaintenance agreement withtheCityofExcelsior and
authorize theMayor andClerk toexecute finalagreements.    

thADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OFTHE CITY OF SHOREWOOD this9 dayofAugust
2021.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor

Attest:  

SandieThone, CityClerk



CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB RD
PARK COMMISSION MEETING SHOREWOOD CITY HALL
TUESDAY, JULY 27, 2021 7:00P.M.  

MINUTES

1. CONVENE PARK COMMISSION MEETING

ChairHirnerconvened themeeting at7:00p.m.  

A. Roll Call
Present:  ChairHirner, Commissioners Schmid, Tauer, andHeinz; City

Council LiaisonLabadie; Parks andRecreation Director Grout;  
Planning Director Darling

Absent: Commissioner Gallivan

B. Review Agenda

Heinz moved toapprove theagenda aswritten.  Tauer seconded themotion.  Motion carried
4-0.  

2. APPROVAL OFMINUTES

A. Park Commission Meeting Minutes ofApril 13, 2021

Schmid moved toapprove theminutes oftheApril 13, 2021 meeting aswritten.  Tauer
seconded themotion.  Motion carried 4-0.  

B. Park Commission Park Tour Minutes from May 11, 2021

Schmid moved toapprove theminutes of theMay 11, 2021 meeting aswritten.  Tauer
seconded themotion.  Motion carried 4-0.  

C. Park Commission Park Tour Minutes from June 8, 2021

Heinz moved toapprove theminutes oftheJune 8, 2021 meeting aswritten.  Tauer seconded
themotion.  Motion carried 4-0.  

3. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR

Therewerenone.    

4. NEW BUSINESS

A. Review ofPark Tours

Planning Director Darling gaveapresentation thatexplained thetrailoptions forFreeman Park.   
Shestatedthatstaffhasarecommendation forOption #3because itseemstoprovide more
flexibility.  Shestatedeventhough thatistheir recommendation, theywouldacknowledge that it

BRENDA
6A



PARKCOMMISSION MINUTES
TUESDAY, JULY27, 2021
PAGE2OF4

doesnotshowcase theactiveportions ofthepark, nordoesitgothrough thewoods, which is
verypretty.    

ChairHirner askedifitwascertain thattheywillconstruct thebridge throughOption #2.    

Planning Director Darling stated thattheywill, however, theresponsibility formaintenance and
replacement would falltotheCity.    

Commissioner Heinznotedthathewalkshispuppyhereandhastriedtoobserve theusageof
theparkandparking habits.  Hestatedthathewouldalsosupport Option #3because itwould
havetheleastimpactonthepark , thewooded areas, andwillbelesscostly.    

Commissioner Tauersharedherconcerns aboutOption #1duetothespeedofthebicycle traffic
andstatedthatshewouldagree thatOption #3isthebestoption.    

ChairHirnerstated thathealsohasconcerns about thefirsttwooptions andwouldsupport Option
3.   

TheCommission discussed Cityparksignage separate fromtheThreeRiversParkDistrict.  

Hirner moved torecommend approval oftheOption #3for theThree Rivers Park District
trail, that the lower parking lothas parking spaces dedicated tothe trailhead, that signage
when entering Freeman Park indicate theparking situation, that thewayfinding signage
directing people be included, that information onthetrailhead beadded totheCity website,  
and that thekiosk belocated where itisplainly visible.  Tauer seconded the motion.   
Motion carried 4-0.  

Planning Director Darling suggested thatCommissioner Heinzpresent totheCouncil onAugust
9, 2021.    

ChairHirnersuggested thatotherCommissioners mayalsowanttoattendsincethisissuchabig
recommendation.  

Hirner moved torecommend that forOption #3, that theCity does not lose thesoccer field
orthat the trail have any impact totheballfield aspart oftheproject.  Tauer seconded the
motion.  Motion carried 4-0.    

TheCommission talkedaboutother itemsrelated totheParktour.   

ChairHirnerstatedthatforafutureagenda, hewould liketodiscuss whether thereissomething
theCommission orCitycandotoencourage anddrawseniorcitizenandothers intotheparks.    

TheCommission discussed possible seniorprogramming options andwaystotapintothesenior
residents oftheCity.   

ChairHirner asked thatthisitembeplacedon nextmonth’sagenda.   

Planning Director Darling notedthat, asagroup, theCommission didnotvisitCrescent Beach,  
Gideon Glen, Minnetonka Country Clubopenspace, ortheChristmas Lakeboat landing.  She
askedifanyoftheCommission members hadcomments fromtheirpersonal visits tothosesites.   



PARKCOMMISSION MINUTES
TUESDAY, JULY27, 2021
PAGE3OF4

Commissioner Tauerexplained thatshehadbeeninstructed byfriendswholiveintheMinnetonka
Country Clubareatopassalong thattheywould lovetrashcansalong thewalking route.    

Planning Director Darling gaveabriefoverview oftheproposal staffwillbebringing nextmonth
aboutsome improvements totheChristmas Lakeboat landing areatoaddress someofthe
concerns fromtheHOAandnearby residents.   

ChairHirnersuggested thattheCommission makeaneffort togoouttotheChristmas Lakeboat
landing areapriortothenextmeeting.   

B. Review Quote forExtension ofFence atSouthshore Community Park
Community Gardens

ParkandRecreation DirectorGroutgaveanoverview ofthequote fromDakota Fencing forthe
extension ofthefencingatSouthshore Community ParkCommunity Gardens.    

ChairHirneraskedwhentheCitymayneedtomakeadecision aboutadding another spigot for
watering, rather thanjustadding morehose.  

ParkandRecreation Director Groutstated thatshewillcheckwiththePublicWorksDepartment
toseeaboutadding another spigot.    

Planning Director Darling stated thatitisonawater line, sosheassumes theyprobably could
addaspigot.  Shestated thatshewillalsoneedtoaskiftherewouldbeenough pressure toadd
another spigot.    

Heinz moved torecommend approval ofthequote from Dakota Fencing forextension of
the fence atSouthshore Community Park Community Gardens.  Tauer seconded the
motion.  Motion carried 4-0.  

5. OLD BUSINESS

Commissioner Heinzstated thathethought theBadgerParkGrandOpening waswelldoneand
congratulated staff forhowwell theeventwent.    

Planning Director Darling notedthatJoeyNova’ssoldoutofeverything thattheyhadplanned for
theeventandactually soldmorepizzainBadger Parkthatevening thantheydidintherestaurant.   
Shestated thattheballoon ladywasbusytheentire time andworked steadily throughout the
event, withaline, until30minutesaftertheeventclosed.   Shecommended ParkandRecreation
Director Grout forherworkonthiseventbecause itturned outlovely.  Shestated that
Communications Director JulieMoorealsodidanice jobgetting thewordoutabout theGrand
Opening.    

Commissioner Heinz stated thattherewasalsoagoodcrowd fortheMusic intheParkevent.   

ParkandRecreation Director Groutstated thatshethinks therewerearound 200peopleand if
so, wouldbethelargest crowdtheyhaveeverhadforMusic inthePark.   



PARKCOMMISSION MINUTES
TUESDAY, JULY27, 2021
PAGE4OF4

6. STAFF AND LIAISON REPORTS / UPDATES

A. City Council

Planning Director Darling gaveanoverview oftheJuly26, 2021CityCouncil meeting.    

B. Staff

1. Update onHennepin County YouthSportsGrant

ParkandRecreation DirectorGroutexplained thattheCitywasawarded $25,000forSilverwood
ParkfromHennepin County YouthSports.   

2. NextMonth’sAgenda

Planning Director Darling asked iftherewasanything elsethattheCommission would liketo
seeonnextmonth’sagenda, besides thethingsalready mentioned tonight.   

3. September ParkMeeting

Planning Director Darling notedthatstaff isrecommending thattheSeptember Parks
Commission meeting becancelled.    

7. ADJOURN

Heinz moved toadjourn thePark Commission Meeting ofJuly 27, 2021 at7:56p.m.   
Tauer seconded themotion.  Motion carried 4-0.  



6B

MEETINGTYPE
RegularMeeting

CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title / Subject:   Three Rivers LRT Trailhead Connection inFreeman Park

Location:  6000Eureka Road

Meeting Date:     August9, 2021

Prepared by:   MarieDarling, Planning Director

Attachments:  Graphic Showing 3TrailConnection Options
ParkCommission memorandum fromMay11, 2021

Background: ThreeRiversapproached theCitywiththepotential toaddanofficial trailhead
connection totheLakeMinnetonka LRT.  During theirannual parktour, theParkCommission
metwithstaff fromtheThreeRiversParkDistrict toexplore threedifferent trailconnections from
theCity’sparking areatotheLRTatFreeman Park.    

TheParkDistrict proposes topayfortheinitial trailconnection, withtheCityresponsible to
maintain thetrail inthefuture.  Inexchange fortheconstruction ofthetrailtotheirstandard,  
ThreeRiverswould liketobeabletoplacetheirwayfinding signage withbranding fora
consistent lookandwould require10parking spaces, afewofwhichwouldbereserved forthe
trailusers.    

AttheirJuly13, 2021meeting, theParkCommission reviewed thethreeoptionsand
recommends option3withseveral conditions, including:  

Locate wayfinding signage inavisible location neartheparking lot
Locate therequired trailhead parking spaces inthesoutherly parking area, not
thelotclosest totheballfields
Add “CityofShorewood” totheexisting signattheLRT/Freeman Park
connection sothatitisclear thatFreeman ParkisaShorewood Park
Addtrailhead information onCityParkwebsite
Construct thetrailwithout impact toeither thesoccer fieldorballfield

Recommendation / Action Requested:   

StaffandtheParkCommission recommend theCityCouncil select Option3astheappropriate
Trailhead connection andauthorize stafftobegindiscussing anagreement withThreeRivers
ParkDistrict.    

Approval requiresasimplemajority.  

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residentsqualitypublicservices, a
healthyenvironment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsoundfinancial
management througheffective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.    









CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

6CTitle/Subject:           Authorize Purchase ofCommunity Garden Fenceat
SouthShore Park MEETING

Meeting Date:  August9, 2021 TYPE
RegularPrepared by:  TwilaGrout, ParkandRecDirector
MeetingReviewed by: Marie Darling, Planning Director

Attachment:  Resolution
Memo fromParkCommission Meeting
Quote fromDakota Unlimited

Background:  Lastyearduring theparktours theParkCommissioners recommended
thatthecommunity garden attheSouthShore Community Parkbeexpanded.  This
pastspringanadditional 9garden plotswereadded informally outside theexisting
chainlink fence.  There isnowatotalof30garden plotsandallthenewplotshave
gardeners.    

Inthepastwhenthegardens havebeenexpanded informally, thecityhasextended the
chainlink fencing around thenewplots.  Staff reached outtoDakota Unlimited fora
quote toextend thefencing around thenewgarden plots.  Thequote forthisworktobe
doneis $3,705.  Theextension ofthefence willnotbeinstalled until fallafter the
gardening season.    

TheParkCommissioners reviewed thequote fromDakota Unlimited attheirJuly27
meeting andunanimously recommended theinstallation oftheextension offencing at
theSouthShoreCommunity Parkgardens.    

ActionRequested: StaffandtheParkCommission recommend theCityCouncil
approve thequote fromDakota Unlimited forextension ofthefenceattheSouthShore
Community Parkgardens.    

Approval requires asimple majority.  

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.    



RESOLUTIONNO. 21-087
CITYOFSHOREWOOD

ARESOLUTIONAPPROVINGTHEEXTENSIONOFFENCINGANDACCEPTINGA
QUOTEATSOUTHSHORECOMMUNITYPARK

WHEREAS, theCityofShorewood (“City”) authorize theinstallation forextension ofthe
fencing attheSouthShore Community Parkgardens; and

WHEREAS, thecosttotheCitywouldbe $3,705forextension ofthefencing; and

NOW, THEREFORE, ITISRESOLVEDthattheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood
hereby accepts thequote fromDakota Unlimited toinstall thefencing around the
extension ofthecommunity gardens atSouthShore Community Park.  

ADOPTEDBYTHECITYCOUNCILOFTHECITYOFSHOREWOODthis9thdayof
August, 2021.     

JenniferLabadie, Mayor
ATTEST:  

SandieThone, CityClerk



4B
CITYOF

SHOREWOOD
5755Country Club Road  Shorewood, Minnesota 55331  952-960-7900

www.ci.shorewood.mn.us  cityhall@ci.shorewood.mn.us

To:   ParkCommission

From:  Twila Grout, Park & RecDirector

Meeting Date:  July13, 2021

Re: Review Quote forExtension ofFence atSouthshore Community Park
Community Gardens

Attachment: Map

Thispastspring ninegarden plotswereadded tothecommunity garden.  Due toexpanding the
gardens, thefencewillneed tobeextended.   

StaffmetwithDakota Fencing andtheyprovided aquote toextend thefencing (Dakota
Fencing isthecompany that installed thecurrent fencing). Thetotalcosttoinstall thefence is
3,705. Theywillbeable toinstall the fence inearlyspring astheyarebooked through 2021.   

Theydidmention thatifanopening becomes available inthefall theywould seeiftheycould
install thefencing then.    

Dakota Fencing mentioned ifthere wasachance thatwewould beextending thegardens that
wemightwant tolookatitnowasitwould becosteffective todoallthefencing now.   
Looking atthegarden site (seeattached map), itmaybehardtoextend thegardens more tothe
west, duetoshade andthetreesalong thenorth sideofthegardens.  There arenow30plotsat
thissite.    

Thisyearallgarden requests were filled attheSouthshore Community Park.    







CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

9ATitle/Subject: RepealingChapter110ofCityCode, Domestic
PartnershipRegistry

Meeting Date:  August 9, 2021 MEETING
Prepared By:   GregLerud, CityAdministrator TYPE

REGULARReviewed By:  TimKeane, CityAttorney

Attachments: Proposed Ordinance

Background:  Aspartofthecity’songoing effort toreview andupdate theMunicipal
Code, staffhasreviewed Chapter 110oftheCode. In2011, theCityCouncil passed
Ordinance No. 486, whichcreated adomestic partnership registry.  Shorewood wasone
ofahandful ofcities thatpassed anordinance toprovide awaytorecognize partners
whowereincommitted relationships butwerenotmarried.  Registering allowed couples
access tobenefits thatwereonlyavailable tocouples whowererecognized asbeing
married.   

Minnesota state lawhaschanged since 2011, ashave insurance rulesandregulations,  
rendering thebenefits ofOrdinance 486obsolete.  Acertificate fromthecityisnolonger
needed toaccess orpreserve thebenefits thatwereavailable toonlymarried couples.   
Inaddition, onlythreecouples haveregistered withthecity, thelastonebeing in2013,  
whichprovides evidence thatthissection ofcodeonceserved itspurpose, butitisno
longer needed. Those whohavealready registered willnothavetheir registration
cancelled.    

Thisproposed Ordinance torepealhasbeendulynoticed asrequired bylaw.  

FinancialorBudgetConsiderations:  None

Options:  Keepthecurrent codesection orpasstheordinance repealing Chapter 110
ofthecitycode.  

RecommendedAction:  Thecitycontinues itsyears-longprocess ofreviewing thecity
codeandeliminating codesections thatarenolonger relevant, orupdating sections as
needed.  Staff recommends passage ofOrdinance No. 579bysimplemajority.  

NextStepsandTimeline:  Ifthecouncil approves theordinance, staffwillpublish as
required.  

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

ORDINANCE580

ANORDINANCEREPEALINGSHOREWOODCITYCODE
CHAPTER110, DOMESTICPARTNERSHIPREGISTRY

Section1.  ThisOrdinance repeals, initsentirety, Chapter 110oftheMunicipal Code.  

Section2.  Effective Date.  ThisOrdinance shall takeeffectuponpassage and
publication intheCity'sofficial newspaper.  

thADOPTEDBYTHECITYCOUNCILoftheCityofShorewood, Minnesota, this9 day
ofAugust, 2021.   

JenniferLabadie, Mayor

ATTEST:  

SandieThone, CityClerk

Ordinance Page1


	Agenda
	2A Minutes 07-26-21 Reg Mtg
	2B Verified Claims
	2C LMCIT Insurance Renewal
	2D Special Meeting for Retreat
	2E Mary Lake Outlet Project
	6A Minutes 07-27-21 Park Comm Mtg
	6B Three Rivers LRT Trailhead Connection
	6C Community Garden Fence
	9A Repeal Domestic Partnership Registry



